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Chairman’s Statement

BV e

Dear Shareholders,

I present to the Shareholders the annual results of the Group for the

financial year ended 31 March 2011 (“FY 20117).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group’s first operating hotel, located in
Xiangfan, Hubei province, contributed hotel rental income and food
& beverage (“F&B”) revenue of HK$4.0 million and HK$0.4 million,
respectively. In respect of the last financial year (“FY 20107), the said hotel,
which opened in the middle of the year, contributed HK$1.8 million of

hotel rental income and HK$0.1 million of F&B revenue.

During the year, three hotel properties located in the cities of Daying,
Yilong and Langzhong in the Sichuan province were disposed of. The hotel
property in the city of Daying was sold for RMB22.0 million (equivalent
to HK$26.1 million), and realised a gain of HK$4.2 million. Whereas the
hotel properties in the cities of Yilong and Langzhong were contracted
to sell for a total of RMB21.5 million (equivalent to HK$25.5 million),
and on completion in July 2011, will realize a gain from the disposal of

approximately HK$4.1 million.

Staff costs have decreased significantly due to the management continuous
implementation of cost control measures and a write-back of a provision
for bonus of HK$23.6 million. Further decrease in operating costs was in
line with the Group’s re-positioning of its strategies. Towards the end of
the last financial year, the Group replaced certain convertible notes with
shareholder’s loan which carries a lower interest rate. This has resulted in a

reduction in the Group’s finance costs.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

For FY 2011, the Group recorded a net loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company of HK$66.4 million (FY 2010: HK$154.3 million).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the

financial year ended 31 March 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND CORPORATE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group maintains its strategies of developing its properties into budget
hotels or commercial offices for leasing or sale, or, when appropriate,
outright sale. The Group will continue its efforts to add value to its assets
by seeking appropriate joint ventures or partnership with companies in the
hospitality, tourism and property industries or companies with investment

interests in these industries.

Budget Hotels in the PRC

As noted above, two properties were disposed of in the second half of

FY 2011 and will record a gain on disposal of HK$4.1 million in FY 2012.

As reported last November, the Group had commenced the renovation of
its property in Yingkou, Liaoning province. The lower floors will be leased
to CITIC Bank, while the upper floors are reserved for leasing and/or for
sale. Completion of renovation, targeted for April 2011, is now delayed by
a couple of months due to harsher winter season and additional renovation
works. When the entire property is leased out i.e. on full occupancy,
the expected steady rental income is anticipated to be approximately

HK$4.8 million per annum.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ERE A (5)

PROSPECTS

China’s continued economic growth and urbanisation trend will continue to
demand for more accommodation facilities to cater for travelers, domestic
and inbound, and for office spaces for growing businesses. A major task in
China’s current 12 Five-Year-Plan is to transfer its economy from high
resource-consuming to environmental friendly industries, of which tourism
falls within. The importance of tourism has recently seen the establishment
of China’s National Tourism Day, which falls on 19 May. The Group
believes that its current focus on budget hotels and commercial offices for
leasing or sale is rightly placed to avail itself of these developing trends in

China.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our utmost gratitude to
our valued clients, sharcholders and business associates for their continued
support for and confidence in the Group. I also wish to express our sincere
appreciation to our management and employees for their positive efforts

over the past year.

Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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2010 3rd Quarter
e

2010 4th Quarter
TR RERENFE

2011 Ist Quarter
e

2011 2nd Quarter
e

Year’s Events

A b

The Company announced annual results for the year ended 31 March 2010.
AAFAMIBRE_F-REZA = —HILEEZ 2 EL-

The Company announced the resignation of Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO as
Executive Director, Group President and Group Chief Executive Officer and a member of
the RQN Committee with effect from 7 August 2010.
A 2 T O Aff R Rl S A AT AT B o - R A AR AT BOR R DL I - R
WRAZBEERE B _F—FF/)\HCHBER-

The Company announced that Datuk LIM Chee Wah has been appointed as Group
President, Group Chief Executive Officer and a member of the RQN Committee with effect
from 7 August 2010.

AR T A S AR B O A 45 T A K SR AT BUAR IR DA R W - B R 4R A
ZEHERE - T -FFE)N\HLHEBAERK-

Annual General Meeting was held on 16 September 2010.
P ABAE R TR T —FFEIA A H BT

The Company announced interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2010.

AAFRABREZZE-FFEILA=ZTHIEAEA Z DS -

Disposal of Yilong hotel, and Langzhong Hotel at a consideration of RMB21.5 million.
H B R Y % T G O - AR s AN R 921,500,0007C ©

The Company announced the change of registered address to Room G603A, 6th Floor,
Empire Centre, No. 68 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

AR V) A5 T b HE 25 A 7 VS U B 4R V0 WH R JEE Hb T 68 9% A B P b 6 E HEG03A
‘% o

The Company announced the sale of entire issued share capital together with the sale loan
of Hart Industries (Far East) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company at a
consideration of HK$1.5 million.

Ay 5] A B A N W] 4> % B B 2 W] Hare Industries (Far East) Limited Z 23 &0 8 47
JBE A 3o 1] 635 5 0K > B %4 1,500,0009 72 ©

The Company announced the change of Company Secretary of the Company.
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Directors Commentaries

& F i

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Turnover

The Group recorded a turnover for the year in the amount of
HK$4.4 million (FY 2010: HK$2.3 million). Current year turnover
comprised hotel rental income and F&B revenue of HK$4.0 million and
HK$0.4 million, respectively. For FY 2010 where the hotel operations
commenced in the middle of the year, hotel rental income and F&B revenue

were HK$1.8 million and HK$0.1 million, respectively.

Other gain

The Group recorded a net gain on disposal of fixed assets of HK$4.2
million (FY 2010: HK$0.5 million). In FY 2010, other gain comprised
HKS$5.2 million of change in fair value of the convertible notes which were
fully redeemed in that year, and HK$0.5 million of net gain on disposal of

fixed assets.

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased significantly during the year due to cost control
measures undertaken by the management and a write back of a provision for
bonus of HK$23.6 million, coupled with a decrease in operating activities in

line with the Group’s re-positioning of its strategies.

Depreciation and amortization

In the last quarter of FY 2010 and during FY 2011 there were several
completions of hotel property transfers which resulted in additions of fixed
assets. The increased fixed asset base contributed to higher depreciation

charge during FY 2011.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses which are of recurring nature comprise mainly
office rentals, and other corporate expenses related to on-going corporate
activities. Other operating expenses have decreased from HK$36.3 million
last year to HK$33.3 million this year mainly due to reduction in non-
recurring costs relating to certain hotel properties acquisitions, offset by

increase in legal and professional fees.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)

Finance costs

Towards the end of the last financial year, the Group redeemed the
convertible notes through a lower interest bearing sharcholder’s loan.
This has resulted in a significant reduction in finance costs from

HK$97.7 million to HK$41.3 million in current year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained total bank and cash balances of HK$96.4 million
as at 31 March 2011. Cash deposits have been placed with major banks in
Hong Kong and the PRC in the form of United States dollar, Hong Kong

dollar and Renminbi deposits.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had amount due to ultimate holding
company and other loans totaling HK$416.4 million due within one year,
and obligations under finance leases of HK$1.1 million maturing within

2 years.

The Group’s gearing ratio is measured on the basis of the Group’s total
interest-bearing debts net of cash reserves over the total equity (including
non-controlling interest). As at 31 March 2011, the gearing ratio was
333.2% (31 March 2010: 200.1%). The increase in the gearing ratio over
the two financial years was mainly due to a smaller total equity coupled with

additional loans from the ultimate holding company.

Subsequent to the year end, the management has obtained agreements
from the lenders to extend the repayment of certain short-term borrowings
totaling HK$416.4 million. As previously reported, certain acquisitions of
properties have been terminated of which some of the deposits totalling
RMB43.6 million (equivalent to HK$51.8 million) were received during
current year. The consideration from disposal of a hotel property in the
city of Daying, Sichuan province, of RMB22.0 million (equivalent to
HKS$26.1 million) has been fully received. Furthermore, the Group received
RMB11.3 million (equivalent to HK$13.4 million) of deposit from the
contracts to sell the hotel properties in the cities of Yilong and Langzhong,

Sichuan province.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)

&= F il (#)

Together with the continuous financial support from the principal
shareholder, the management is confident that by executing its plans the
Group is able to meet its obligations. The Group, taking into account of
its activities and assets in China, is considering various plans to address the
shareholders’ deficit, which at the financial year ended 31 March 2011 stood
at HK$27.0 million. The management will continue its efforts to resolve

this issue.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had a total of 120 employees (31 March
2010: 115 employees), including Executive Directors. The Group’s
remuneration policy and packages for the Executive Directors and senior
management are reviewed and recommended by the RQN Committee and
approved by the Board on an annual basis while that for other employees’
are reviewed and approved by the Group Chief Executive Officer. The
Group remunerates its employees based on industry practice and the
performance of each individual. The Group also offers discretionary
bonuses, medical insurance, and defined contribution retirement plans, and

provides a share option scheme for its employees and Executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah, Chairman, Group President, Group Chief Executive
Officer, Chairman of the EC V and member of the RQNC ¥

Aged 56. Datuk Lim has been appointed as the Chairman and Executive
Director since 27 April 2004, Group President and Group Chief Executive
Officer since 7 August 2010 respectively. Datuk Lim holds a Bachelor
of Economics degree of The London School of Economics, England.
Datuk Lim has substantial investment and management experience in a
wide range of industries including plantations, leisure and entertainment,
construction, property development and information technology. Prior
to joining the Group, Datuk Lim was the Deputy Managing Director of
Genting Berhad and the Joint Managing Director of Asiatic Development
Berhad during 1985 to 1990, and an Alternate Non-executive Director
of Asia Financial Holdings Limited during 1997 to 2002. Datuk Lim was
appointed as Executive Director of Dataprep Holdings Berhad on 5 March
2002, he has re-designated and continued to serve that company as a Non-
independent Non Executive Director since November 2007. Genting
Berhad and Asiatic Development Berhad are listed on the Main Board of
the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, Dataprep Holdings Berhad on the
Second Board of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, and Asia Financial
Holdings Limited on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Datuk Lim is
a director and beneficial shareholder of VXL Capital Partners Corporation
Limited (“VXLCPL”) and is also an ultimate beneficial owner of Huge More
Limited (“Huge More”) from 7 May 2010, both VXLCPL and Huge More
are substantial shareholders of the Company under the SFO.

Profiles of Directors
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

HREE ()

Mr. XIAO Huan Wei, Member of the EC

Aged 53. Mr. Xiao is the President — China of the Group since July 2006
and has been appointed as an Executive Director on 25 July 2008. He has
also been appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer of U-Inn Group
since 31 March 2010. Mr. Xiao has over 24 years professional experience
in business investment, operation and management in the Mainland
China. He was engaged in the establishment and management of the first
joint venture company affiliated to Shanghai Post & Tele-communication
Management Bureau from 1986 to 1991. In 1992, he participated in the
formation of Ming Sheng Group and acted as the General Manager of its
Shanghai branch. He was the President of Ming Sheng Group from 1994 to
2000 and was responsible for various functions including investment, real
estate development, import and export, logistics, computer network and
communications. Prior to joining the Group, he found an educational and
financial service company in Australia which was in cooperation with the
Bank of Communication in China and Australia Westpac to provide overall

financial solutions to students from China.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., Member of the AC? and the RQNC @

Aged 67. Mr. Smith has been appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director since 27 April 2004. Mr. Smith holds an L.L.B. (Hons) degree
of Bristol University, England. He was admitted as a solicitor in England
in 1967 and in Hong Kong in 1970. He was elected a council member
of the Stock Exchange on two occasions. He was a member of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government’s Economic Advisory
Committee, and was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform for ten years. Mr. Smith was the Vice
Chairman, Pacific Region of Credit Suisse First Boston, a leading global
investment bank from 1997 until his retirement in December 2001. He
was also the Chief Executive of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1983 to
1994 and the Chairman of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1994 to 1996.
Mr. Smith has over 26 years of investment banking experience in Asia.
Mr. Smith is an Independent Non-executive Director of a number of listed
companies including, Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited and Genting
Hong Kong Limited (formerly known as “Star Cruises Limited”) which
are listed on the Stock Exchange; Noble Group Limited which is listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited; Asian Credit Hedge Fund
Ltd., which is listed on The Irish Stock Exchange; and Global Investment
House, KSC which is listed on Kuwait Stock Exchange, Bahrain Stock
Exchange, The Dubai Financial Market and The London Stock Exchange.

10

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Ki#i 4> il 7 bR 2 )

MR ITEATH A
hH=FBAEAEHR ZEFRAELHR
TE AT T A 55 0 v R R R\ 4
A=A B R RAL R BATE F R
BB REZAZT - HBRERERK
MR M BT B BB
A PUAR R B A SRR B A B
ERB BRI AREE-NN—E2
SR B L EE R T E
KPS A ERIE PR L2 HA
e R 4 ) - S 9 AR I b N R AR AR B S R
B E ZRREPERMERAEEE
AR > BT SR i B AR D M
Je& ~ T A H T~ W~ A A £ S
3o 7 o S A 4 T - A0 RN A — i B2
o o 22 3 SR AT RN P K SRAT I £ AR 2
B Bl AR A T - e vl P R A 4R R
S s AR DR T R o

BT ES
WKV L FE LB TR FH R
#EERETMA

AT BEAH ZFRNENA b
HRE R R B LI AT E S o AR A
B |9 415 BLT 6 K 22 (Bristol University) A 3
B (5 BT - AR — Juos bR R 3
B —JU-E AR A A U R R T R B o A W Y
PEE R D AR T PR R B oY R
WRERAT R BN AREENZREaRE -
IR 85 7 75 W BOR 24 5] 8 08 B & B AL
BETFEo AR ULEEERE R
RE-HETABEW - -GBEFLNLE
B o R AT B L A5 B0 — D B A K e
B R o R —JUNZ4E R —Ju LA
e % ha w AR AT AR - R —JuJu g
ERE-NIIANFEH N EZEE N E-
S 2k HE R T N AR R N A SR AT R
R o) W A i ol TN R IRVAE | 2
A7 3 - B85 7 Ik 22 B b T R 4 N 4R
[ /AT Ry e = e S /N R O
[EEBmARAR D) S RBmER 5 ha
PR 24 #] (Singapore Exchange Limited) b 1fi iy
Noble Group Limited 3 7 % i Wi 78 2738 &) it
(The Irish Stock Exchange)J:fﬁ i Asian Credit
Hedge Fund Led. B 43 B B 8 32 5 B
(Kuwait Stock Exchange)~ EL#K A 5 FIf (Bahrain
Stock Exchange) - #F R 5 fff (The Dubai
Financial Market) & i 2 &2 5 Bt .1 ) Global

Investment House, KSC °



Profiles of Directors (Continued)

During the last three years, Mr. Smith was a director of China Sunergy
Co., Ltd., which is listed on NASDAQ during the period from May 2007
to June 2008; and of The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited,
which is listed on the Stock Exchange until he resigned from the office
with effect from 23 October 2009. Mr. Smith was an independent non-
executive director of Frasers Property (China) Limited which is listed on the
Stock Exchange, United International Securities Limited which is listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited; and Castle Asia Alternative
PCC Limited (formerly known as “KGR Absolute Return PCC Limited”)
which is listed on The London Stock Exchange until he resigned from the
office with effect on January 2011, April 2011 and April 2011, respectively.
Mr. Smith is also as a director of Lei Shing Hong Limited, which was
delisted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 17 March 2008
following completion of its privatization and The LIM Asia Multi-Strategy
Fund Inc. (formerly known as “The LIM Asia Arbitrage Fund Inc.”), CQS
Asia Feeder Fund Limited and CQS Convertible and Quantitative Strategies
Feeder Fund Limited which had been listed on The Irish Stock Exchange
but were voluntarily delisted in 2008, July 2009 and September 2009,

respectively.

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P., Chairman of the RQNC @ and member of
the AC @

Aged 71. Dr. Lee has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director since 6 October 2005. Dr. Lee holds an honorary degree of
Doctor of Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
an honorary degree of Doctor of Laws of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Dr. Lee was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council from 1978 to 1997 and a senior member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council from 1988 to 1991. He was also a member of the
Hong Kong Executive Council from 1985 to 1992. Dr. Lee is currently the
Chairman of Pacific Dimensions Consultants Limited and Jada Electronics
Limited. He has also taken an active role in public services. Dr. Lee is an
Independent Non-executive Director of AMS Public Transport Holdings
Limited, Giordano International Limited, ITE (Holdings) Limited,
Playmates Holdings Limited, Sam Woo Holdings Limited and Wang On
Group Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)
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Mr. David YU Hon To, Chairman of the AC ¥ and member of the RQNC @

Aged 63. Mr. Yu has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director since 1 May 2007. Mr. Yu is the Vice Chairman of MCL Partners
Limited, a Hong Kong-based financial advisory and investment firm.
Mr. Yu is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He was formerly a partner of an international
accounting firm with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu
is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of China Datang
Corporation Renewable Power Company Limited, Great China Holdings
Limited, Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Energy (Holdings)
Limited, Media Chinese International Limited, One Media Group Limited,
Playmates Holdings Limited, Sateri Holdings Limited, Synergis Holdings
Limited and TeleEye Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

During the last three years, Mr. Yu was an Independent Non-executive
Director of Cinda International Holdings Limited (formerly known as
“Hantec Investment Holdings Limited”) until 23 December 2008, which is

listed on the Stock Exchange.

Notes:

(1)  EC — Executive Committee of the Board

(2)  AC — Audit Committee of the Board

(3) RQNC - Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee of the Board
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2011.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to our Shareholders.

Our principles of corporate governance emphasize on a quality Board,
sound internal controls, independence, transparence of information and
accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the management are
committed to continuously improving corporate governance practices and an

ethical corporate culture as its intrinsic value.

The Group has principally complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2011, with minor deviations

as stated below.

Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. After the resignation of Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-
CHAO as the Group Chief Executive Officer effective from 7 August 2010,
Datuk LIM Chee Wah, the Chairman of the Board, has been appointed
also as the Group Chief Executive Officer. The Board considers that this is
a transitional arrangement to cater for a smooth handover. If a candidate
with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is identified, the Company
will make appointment to the post of the Group Chief Executive Officer as

appropriate.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
SR E A ()

Pursuant to Code A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. All the Non-executive
Directors, except Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, are appointed for a
specific term. However, as one-third of all the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at each AGM pursuant to Article 133 of the Articles
of Association, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been made
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less

exacting than those stipulated in the CG Code.

Pursuant to Code A.4.2 of the CG Code, all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by sharcholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment. Every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. In accordance with Article 133 of the Articles of
Association, one-third of the directors are subject to retirement by rotation.
The Board therefore considers that as the Board consists of five directors and
each of them retires in every three years, this effectively achieves the same

objective as set out in the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2011, the Board comprises five directors including two
Executive Directors, namely, Datuk LIM Chee Wah and Mr. XIAO
Huan Wei and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ]J.P. and
Mr. David YU Hon To.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms of

its diversity of experience and expertise and independence.

Director’s Nomination and Appointment

The Company, since April 2006, has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” for setting out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is empowered to appoint a
director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders
(being two or more Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
entire issued share capital of the Company) are empowered to nominate
candidates for directorship and subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meeting. RQN Committee can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next AGM and be eligible for re-election.

The Company has been providing comprehensive induction to newly
appointed directors to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company and that they are fully aware of
their responsibilities under statute and common laws, the Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the

business and governance policies of the Company.

The Company has purchased Directors’ & Officers’ Liability insurance for

all Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board Practices

The Board holds meeting regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss business development as well as
the overall strategy of the Company. All directors are given an opportunity
to include matters in the meeting agenda. Formal notice of at least 14 days
is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given for
all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
available for inspection by Directors. Directors have full and unrestricted
access to relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate
information in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make
an informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities. The
Board has adopted procedures to enable the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense,
to assist them to discharge their duties, as provided in the “Guideline on

Independent Professional Advice”.

The Board held six meetings during the year ended 31 March 2011 and its

attendance record is set out below:—
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Eligibility to No. of Attendance

Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)

W JRE R K B R B % R (%)

Datuk LIM Chee Wah R 6 6 100
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO i i A S A

(resigned on 7 August 2010) (A %4

J\H Lt HEHE) 3 1 33.33

Mr. XIAO Huan Wei I ft S A 6 6 100

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. o AR A 6 6 100

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P, e i o N 6 6 100

Mr. David YU Hon To i B S A 6 6 100
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Independence

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment
and conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, representing over half of the full
Board members. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses
accounting expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
The Board received from each Independent Non-executive Director
a written confirmation of his independence and is satisfied with his

independence as required by the Listing Rules.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term
except Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, ].P, who does not have a fixed term of
appointment, but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
AGM. According to the Article 133 of Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors who served longest on the Board, shall retire but shall be
eligible for re-election at the AGM. Pursuant to Code A.4.2 of the CG
Code, every Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years.
The Board will ensure each Director shall retire by rotation at least once
every three years in order to comply with the Code Provisions of the Listing

Rules.

According to the Article 110 of Articles of Association, a Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election

by shareholders at the first AGM after his appointment.

Relationship

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with each other.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer have
been clearly defined in the “Guideline on Division of Roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer”. As a transitional arrangement, after Mr. Percy
ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO has resigned as the Group Chief Executive
Officer, Datuk LIM Chee Wah was appointed as the Group Chief Executive
Officer on 7 August 2010. If a candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and
experience is identified, the Company will make appointment to the post of

the Group Chief Executive Officer as appropriate.

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and
the Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the

management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

Board Committees

The Board has established three board committees, i.e., Audit Committee,
Executive Committee and RQN Committee and delegated authority to
them for overseeing certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. There are clear
written terms of reference for board committees. Reports of committee

meetings are presented to the Board regularly.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Executive Committee

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Executive Committee comprised
all the Executive Directors. The Executive Committee was chaired by Mr.
Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO until his resignation on 7 August 2010, and
thereafter it was chaired by Datuk LIM Chee Wah and the other member is
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei.

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group and its principal
duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated functions

and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors who possess appropriate business, legal, engineering and financial
experience and skills to undertake reviews of financial statements in
accordance with good practice of financial reporting. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. David YU Hon To and the other two members are Mr.
Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, and Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.D.

The Audit Committee’s main duties are as follows:

(1) to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment,
resignation and removal of the External Auditor, and to approve the

remuneration and terms of engagement of the External Auditor;

(2) to develop and implement policy on the engagement of External

Auditor for provision of non-audit services;

(3) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements with exercise of

professional judgment before submission to the Board; and

(4) to review financial control, internal control and risk management

systems.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March

2011 and its attendance record is set out below:

FERRAORRE_Z——F=A=1+—H
kAR B2 B AT Y W R > R R Rk B
LU

Eligibility to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
W JRE H i Uk B WAV % R (%)
M. David YU Hon To AT S 2 2 100
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. LUHE N R 2 100
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P. 25 6 R T o s 2 2 100

The main work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 March 2011 and up to the date of this Annual Report included the
review of External Auditor’s audit plan and interim, annual financial
statements and results announcements as well as audit reports. It has also
reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system and

approved the internal audit report.

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination (“RQN”) Committee

The RQN Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors and the Group Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Committee is chaired by Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P. and the other three
members are Datuk LIM Chee Wah, Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. and
Mr. David YU Hon To.

The RQN Committee has adopted clear terms of reference and its principal
duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and to draw up procedures for formulating an incentive-based

remuneration policy.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The RQN Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March

2011 under review and its attendance record is set out below:

1SR E A ()

RQNZE AR E B~ = A=t
FI Ik A7 JE 73 5847 7 2 6 3 0
ST :

Eligibility to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
W JE H i Uk B WA/ % R (%)
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P. 25 6 R T oF 2 2 100
Datuk LIM Chee Wah EX-9INIE
(appointed on 7 August 2010) (AT —F4F
NHEHBEZRE) 1 1 100
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P P PN 2 2 100
Mr. David YU Hon To i B S A 2 100
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO je i A S 2k
(resigned on 7 August 2010) (TR
J\H B HEHTE) 1 0 0

The main work performed by the RQN Committee during the year ended
31 March 2011 and up to the date of this Annual Report included the
recommendation and approval of the fees and remuneration of Executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors. It has also reviewed

and recommended the appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (including amendments as effected from time to time) as
the code of conduct of the Directors in respect of transactions in securities
of the Company. Following specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out

in the Model Code for the financial year ended 31 March 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests of the Directors in Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company

Name of Directors Nature of Interests

HELH HE 45 1 B

Datuk LIM Chee Wah Interests in Shares — Corporate Interests
FHEMRBE TA ey 2 1 4 — 2 vl B £

Interests in Share Options — Personal Interests

T B i e 2 e 2 — A A M A

22

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Ki#i 4> il 7 bR 2 )

3 R AT BRI 2 AR

BB -—EEAZTH W GERX
MR pRp) 5= 0 A H A A ]
T 45 0 88 GO T T A > A D AT AR R
TAA 2 T B SO o T (4% GG 20 I ) B A
B0 SEXVHR T R T B ) SR - R B
Py B A e - s B R BRI Pl (B
HSP ) RN A 2 R B A2 P R R 2 % R
BWTE:

R AR 2 W) e Ay B A B i Y
L E

Ordinary Shares/
underlying Shares Approx. % of
Note of HK$0.01 each Issued Shares
T I f0.013 76 LIS S5
ZEEm/ JBE 3 BT BE 4
Wit A I H 4 b (%)
1 1,069,308,000 69.9%
2 4,400,000 -

1,073,708,000 -
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Notes:

1. The corporate interests of 1,069,308,000 Shares are held by VXL Capital
Partners Corporation Limited (“VXLCPL”), a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Datuk LIM Chee Wah (“Datuk Lim”). The interests in
1,069,308,000 Shares comprises 769,308,000 Shares and 300,000,000 Shares
which are beneficially owned by VXLCPL and Huge More Limited (“Huge
More”) respectively. Huge More is a wholly-owned subsidiary of VXLCPL since
7 May 2010. Datuk Lim is also a director of VXLCPL.

2. Details of the interests in Share Options are set out separately in the section

“Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors.

3. All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the Shares or

underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the Directors or their
Associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register
maintained under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the interests or short positions of every person, other
than the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company, in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company, as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interests

bt 3 4 1R HE i P B

Interests in Shares — Beneficial Interests

T M 2 Wl 2 — 45 B 2

VXL Capital Partners Corporation

Limited

Interests in Shares — Beneficial Interests

T M 2 M 2 — 4 B i

Huge More Limited
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Ordinary Shares/
underlying Shares Approx. %
Note of HK$0.01 each  of Issued Shares
B R0.017 T e8I
P 31 v & Ay V) H6E 40
Hi ik il L A 43 (%)
1 1,069,308,000 69.9%
1 300,000,000 19.6%
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Notes:

1. The interest in 1,069,308,000 Shares comprise 769,308,000 Shares and
300,000,000 Shares which are beneficially-owned by VXLCPL and Huge More,
respectively. Huge More is wholly-owned by VXLCPL since 7 May 2010. Datuk
Lim is also a director and the beneficial owner of VXLCPL.

2. All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the Shares and

underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, no other interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares were recorded in the register

maintained under section 336 of the SFO.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Group’s External Auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers. The External
Auditor provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the External Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and
to report its opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, in accordance
with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee is
obliged to ensure continuing External Auditor’s objectivity and safeguard

independence.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, audit fee amounted to approximately
HK$638,000 and non-audit fee amounted to approximately HK$264,000.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011,
which give a true and fair view. In preparing these consolidated financial
statements, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
made judgments under circumstances and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the Group.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the External Auditor of the Company, has
presented its responsibilities and opinion in the independent auditor’s report

as set out on pages 37 to 38.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

In the Company, the Board has overall responsibility for internal controls
and reviewing its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure
that assets are adequately protected against unauthorized use or disposal
and that the interests of Sharcholders are safeguarded. The systems in place
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.
P

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to Code C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company reviewed the
need for an internal audit function since April 2006 and considered it was
appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing the internal audit
functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an external accounting
firm as Internal Auditor to provide internal audit services to the Group on

an annual basis.

The Internal Auditor has conducted evaluation and tests in connection with

the following management’s assertions for the year ended 31 March 2011:

(1) the system of internal controls of the Group including financial
reporting, operational and compliance controls are effective;

(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.
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The Internal Auditor also formulates the annual internal audit plan and
procedures, conduct periodic independent reviews on the operations of each
division to identify any irregularities and risks, develop action plans and
make recommendations to address the identified risks, and report to the
Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit
process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material

issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of Code Provision C.2.1, the
Directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the Group and
further improve the system with respect to financial controls, operational
controls, compliance controls and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes

and budget.

The Company will continue where necessary to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of Sharcholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to Shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange following

the general meeting.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as Chairman of the Audit Committee and RQN Committee, or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and where applicable,
the independent Board committee, are available to answer questions at the

shareholders’ meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and

timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through websites

of the Stock Exchange and of the Company (http://www.vxlcapital.com).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to and within the knowledge
of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the latest practicable date prior

to the issue of this Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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Report of the Directors

o5

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 18 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by operating segments of the Group’s performance, assets and
liabilities for the year is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 39.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers for the year are guests of the Group’s hotel
properties and accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover

from hotel properties for the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier was approximately 32% of the Group’s total purchases and
the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers

accounted for approximately 43% of the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors, their Associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or

suppliers noted above.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the year (FY 2010:
HKS$Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note 30

to the consolidated financial statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2011, calculated
under section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$Nil (31
March 2010: HK$12,751,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial periods is set out on page 129.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries repurchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Key terms of the Scheme are summarized below:

(@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the growth and development of the

Group;

The participants of the Scheme include any employee or officer
(whether full time or part time, and include any Executive Director but
exclude any Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director) of any company within the Group or any Invested Entity (as

defined in the Scheme);

The total number of Shares available for issue upon exercise of all
outstanding options already granted under the Scheme is 12,200,000
Shares, representing 0.80% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 March 2011. The maximum number of remaining Shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 102,000,000, representing
6.67% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March
2011.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the Scheme
unless approval from the Shareholders has been obrained. The
number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Group if such grant would result in the 30% limit being

exceeded;
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Unless approved by Sharcholders in general meeting, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
to any Eligible Participant (as defined in the Scheme) under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period during which an
option is exercised by the grantee, shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of Shares for the time being in issue. Any grant of options
to a substantial Shareholder or any of their respective Associates in
aggregate more than 0.1% of Shares in issue, and having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price on the date of such grant, in excess
of HK$5.0 million, must be approved by Shareholders in general

meeting;

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period (which may not expire later
than 10 years from the date of grant) to be notified by the Board to
each grantee. Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its sole
discretion, there is no requirement on the minimum period for which
any option granted or to be granted must be held or the performance

targets which must be achieved before the option can be exercised;

(vii) A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of consideration for

the grant of an option is required to be paid by each grantee upon
acceptance of the option. An option may be accepted by a grantee

within 28 days from the date of offer of grant of the option;

(viii) The subscription price payable upon exercising any particular option

granted under the Scheme is determined based on a formula: P = N x
Ep, where “P” is the subscription price; “N” is the number of shares to
be subscribed; and “Ep” is the exercise price of the highest of (a) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of offer; (b) the official closing
price of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; and (c) the average of the official closing
prices of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

offer and as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the Scheme; and

v)

(vi)

(vii)
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(ix) The life of the Scheme is until the tenth anniversary of the adoption (ix) #H#EIE B T B ERAAE N H R
date of the Scheme or the date on which the Scheme is terminated by B+ 4R I - SR E B BRI K& b
resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier. T A R FTE PR R H ks DL R

H R o
As at 31 March 2011, movements of Share Options are as follows:— P E——FE=ZH=Z+—H R EH
mr:
No. of Share Options
i Tt R
Exercise Share Cancelled/ Share
Price per Options Granted Exercise lapsed Options
Date of Exercise Share as at during during during as at
Grantees Grant Period (HK$)  1/4/2010 the year the year theyear  31/3/2011
1
#* R
B —F %48 AR =R
e WA—H ARG A i#,/  =T—H

BB A M (W) Z W il itk KR Z MR

Directors : e

Datuk LIM Chee Wah SR 23/8/2007 23/8/2007 to 0.77 4,400,000 - - ~ 4,400,000

22/08/2012
Mr Dercy R At A e A 23/8/2007 23/8/2007 to 0.77 4,400,000 - — (4,400,000) -
ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO (R=%—%& 22/08/2012
(Resigned on 7 August 2010) NH L HEHE)
Employees : Mg
Aggregate total of employees R E A2 23/8/2007 23/8/2007 to 0.77 12,600,000 - - (4,800,000) 7,800,000
22/08/2012
21,400,000 - - (9,200,000) 12,200,000
Notes: Bff 5tz -
1. The Share Options to subscribe for Shares are exercisable as to: Lo W JBORE VT TR B0 I B AT 8 DA SR it

(i) For Directors or employees who have been employed for not less than two
years immediately before date of grant:
(a)  up to 20% immediately after date of grant;
(b)  up to 46.7% immediately after 12 months from date of grant;
(¢)  up to 73.3% immediately after 24 months from date of grant; and
(d)  up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of grant.

(i) For Directors or employees who have been employed for less than two
years immediately before date of grant:
(a)  up to 33.3% immediately after 12 months from date of grant;

(b)  up to 66.7% immediately after 24 months from date of grant; and

(¢)  up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of grant.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2011 and up to the date of

this Annual Report were:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAQO (resigned on 7 August 2010)
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.

Mr. David YU Hon To

In accordance with Article 133 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Datuk LIM Chee Wah, who has been the longest in office since the last
election will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,

will offer himself for re-election.

In accordance to Code A.4.2 of the CG Code, every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Mr. XIAO Huan Wei, who
was retired and re-elected in 2008 AGM, will retire by rotation at the

forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 9 to 12.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

= ()

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

On 7 August 2010, Datuk LIM Chee Wah was appointed by the Company
as Group President, Group Chief Executive Officer and member of the
RQN Committee. Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. resigned as Independent
Non-executive Director of (i) Frasers Property (China) Limited which is
listed on the Stock Exchange in January 2011, (ii) United International
Securities Limited which is listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited in April 2011, and (iii) Castle Asia Alternative PCC Limited
(formerly known as “KGR Absolute Return PCC Limited) which is listed
on The London Stock Exchange in April 2011. Mr. David YU Hon To
was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of China Datang
Corporation Renewable Power Company Limited and Sateri Holdings
Limited on 1 July 2010 and 8 December 2010 respectively, both are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Except as set out in this Annual Report, there is no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant

to Rule 13.51(B) to Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Dertails of the Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out in Note 14a to

the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-clection at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2011, none of the Directors nor his/her Associates was
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

As announced on 13 April 2011, the Company entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with VXLCPL which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Datuk LIM Chee Wah, the Chairman of the Board. The Company
agreed to sell and VXLCPL agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital
together with the sale loan of Hart Industries (Far East) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company at a consideration of HK$1.5 million.
This transaction constituted a connected transaction for the Company under

the Listing Rules and the transaction was completed on 18 April 2011.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 15 May 2006, VXL Management Services Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement”) with Smart Forward Services Limited (“Smart Forward”),
a company wholly and beneficially owned by Datuk LIM Chee Wah,
the Chairman of the Board, to lease the premises at Flat B, 56th Floor,
Tower 1 and Car Parking No. 1-224 on 1st Floor, The Harbourside, No.
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Premises”) for a term of two
years commencing on 15 May 2006 at a monthly rent of HK$55,000.
The Premises are used as housing accommodation for staff or guests of the
Company. The Tenancy Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company and details of which were announced on 15

May 2006.

On 13 May 2008, the lease has been renewed for further two years
commencing on 15 May 2008 at a monthly rent of HK$66,000. A rental
deposit of HK$132,000 has been placed with Smart Forward. The lease
expired on 14 May 2010 and was not renewed. From 1 April 2010 to
14 May 2010, total rental expenses paid was HK$99,000 (FY 2010:
HK$792,000).
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as the connected transactions disclosed above and those transactions
disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly subsisted at end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Details of Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests in securities are set out
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities” in

the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

Details of Substantial Shareholders’ interests in securities are set out in the
section “Substantial Shareholders™ Interests in Securities” in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 13 to 27 in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
External Auditor of the Company. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and,

being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011

36

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Ki#i 4> il 7 bR 2 )

AR LE S A

Wi b ST 0 8 TR L 52 B D e 5 T 0 A MR
32 [R5 22 55 | P e 88 W9 22 53 Bb » A
e A e B 2 I RBE 0 T o S A A B SR A
TR B AR B G A - T R R R
BEA T KR 2 - 3 FL R 4R 4% AR AT ] Iy
[ A2 5 o

3 R AT BRI 2 AR

T T AT B R P R B A N R AR AR i
(3 indch) W E S LT E
MERE | — i o

I BRI O AR A R (3
BiRHA) W R &SRS ] o

®EER

A F B MR TR A SRR L o A
23 ] R AN A 3545 IR B R SR AS 4R it
B REE) F138H27H -

% B kil

SR 785 it 2 phy A 2 ] 1 A7 IS A S 5 K T
w2 T A A o A % SR E R
Pk i JE g e OB AR R EIRAT: - WEAF B
e FLIE O AT -

AR iy
Ev3
B bk B

i R -—HFEANHAZTH



PRICEMATERHOUSE( QOPERS

Independent Auditor’s Report

T8 S A% Sl

BORKESMEBA

To the shareholders of VXL Capital Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VXL Capital
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 39 to 126, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

T S A% W g (%)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2011, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Aok 2 T WA 2R

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2011 2010
R DR
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
it T T
Turnover R 5 4,401 2,329
Other gain, net A 2 ) A 6 4,274 5,719
Staff costs 1@ B AR 7 6,365 (28,893)
Depreciation and amortization 7 8% 4 6 (7,044) (5,739)
Other operating expenses oAl 78 7 B S (33,279) (36,330)
Operating loss R e 8 (25,283) (62,914)
Finance income WA 9 218 6,334
Finance costs L2 gWUN 10 (41,349) (97,665)
Share of losses of associates JE AL T 42 2\ ] Js 1 19 = (33)
Loss before taxation R At i s 48 (66,414) (154,278)
Taxation charge i JE 32 11 (3) 3)
Loss for the year N R (66,417) (154,281)
Other comprehensive income: Hoplh 2T A ¢
Movement in financial assets 5 g s — Tt B
— available for sale 117 -
Currency translation differences A e o B 55 AR 17,488 1,228
Other comprehensive income for the year, A Y At A2 E WA
net of tax B30 B A IE 17,605 1,228
Total comprehensive loss for the year AN 4T i 1H AR AR (48,812) (153,053)
Loss for the year attributable to AR Oy v BE 3R R A N HEAG
equity holders of the Company BN E 12 (66,417) (154,281)
Total comprehensive loss for the year Ao ERE 25 R N AL
attributable to equity holders of the Company AN 4 T S P AR (48,812) (153,053)
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share Z% 2 uJ %2 555 N AL 4E W
for loss for the year attributable to equity s 48 2 5 it 3 2 e e AR K
holders of the Company 7 % A 13 HK(4.34) centsi il HK(10.09) centsi# Al

The notes on pages 46 to 126 form part of these consolidated financial BACH BB 120E Z Wit B AR 45 & M B i3

statements. Z 4y
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A 3 W B AR DL AR

Asat 31 March 2011 P —F——4F=H=—+—H

2011 2010
e =
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Fff 5k Tt T-#o0
Non-current assets I U B B
Property, plant and equipment e T Y& L) 15(a) 255,302 229,590
Land use rights + R 16 82,762 79,790
Construction in progress TEE: T2 17 8,549 4,302
Interests in associates W 7 o> ] RE 25 19 — 96
Available-for-sale financial assets wl 4k B B 20 33,339 2,111
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE Wik D ~ FE A Ak 8 e K4 22 106,912 130,399
486,864 446,288
Current assets i B
Financial assets at fair value through WAVHEBBRERIIRZ
profit or loss B 21 - 31,111
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JE Wk T~ TR A R E K 3%k 4 22 28,805 76,700
Bank balances and cash SRAT 45 Bl 4 23 96,350 35,659
Amount due from related companies e WAL I 2 8 ] =2 R I 21 =
125,176 143,470
Assets held for sale e B2 & 24 19,463 -
144,639 143,470
Current liabilities i B £ %
Payables and accruals JRE A 5k T % M i IE H 25 93,115 95,056
Liability component of compound Was TR A5
financial instrument 26 18,850 10,150
Borrowings fi sk 27 416,980 325,511
528,945 430,717
Net current liabilities i Bh B 3R (384,3006) (287,247)
Total assets less current liabilities H8 % D B B 102,558 159,041
Non-current liabilities Ik i B 815
Liability component of compound Wals TR A5
financial instrument 26 5,569 12,375
Borrowings fi 27 586 1,193
6,155 13,568
Net assets & I 96,403 145,473
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

A B AR DL (#])

Asat 31 March 2011 B =& ——#=H=+—H

2011 2010
e
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B Tt T-#o0

EQUITY HE %2
Share capital JBe A% 29 15,296 15,296
Reserves fit fhe 30 (42,257) 6,813
Total shareholders’ (deficit)/fund B (MG &) % 4 B (26,961) 22,109
Non-controlling interest Ik 5 L WE 2% 26 123,364 123,364
Total equity HE %5 28 % 96,403 145,473

Approved by the Board on 22 June 2011 and signed on behalf of the Board
by:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah
E S0 NIE

Director

HF

The notes on pages 46 to 126 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Mr. XTAO Huan Wei
H R A

Director

SRA6H AR 126 H Z Wk Ji AK7 5 I B R

Z ke

#HF
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Statement of Financial Position

A 5 5IR DA%

Asat 31 March 2011 P —F——4F=H=—+—H

2011 2010
R R FES
Note HK$’000 HK$000
Fff 5k Tt T-#o0
Non-current assets IE IR By
Property, plant and equipment LERE Y & 15(b) 27 42
Interests in subsidiaries Kb JB5 2 W] HE 25 18 330,000 330,000
Available-for-sale financial assets wl gk B B 20 - 660
330,027 330,702
Current assets i B & R
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE Wk T ~ FE Ak I S ¥ 4 22 2,949 2,913
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WA R i 2 ) ik 18 51,626 133,590
Bank balances and cash SRATA B R Bl 4 23 249 325
54,824 136,828
Current liabilities i B £
Payables and accruals JE A5k JE % RE T IE B 25 1,582 2,474
Borrowings [ 3K 27 367,112 278,631
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE ASF B i 2 ) k0 18 12,196 53,319
380,890 334,424
Net current liabilities i B £ e (326,066) (197,596)
Total assets less current liabilities HEE E D U B £ R 3,961 133,106
Net assets B A 3,961 133,106
EQUITY HE %
Share capital JBe A 29 15,296 15,296
Reserves Tt 1 30(b) (11,335) 117,810
Total equity HE %5 48 A 3,961 133,106

Approved by the Board on 22 June 2011 and signed on behalf of the Board W-B——FEANH T HEHESRGER
by: WHDATEREREEFGRE:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah Mr. XIAO Huan Wei

€=y INIE 0 S A
Director Director
HF HF

SRAGH 5126 Z Mk B A AR & 1 5 ok
Z 4y e

The notes on pages 46 to 126 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Gt 26 52

LIS

AT HES R A A
Available-
for-sale Employee
financial ~ share-based Non-
Share Share assets  compensation Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interest equity
wiEhE DR
WHRE  ZEEME
12 T B i 5 o fi T 54t Rl AW RS i 48 AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T T T
Ac 1 April 2009 REZFNENA—H 15,296 152,049 404 6,696 17,208 (16,873) 174,780 - 174,780
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (154,281) (154,281) - (154,281)
Other comprehensive income: LYES TN
Translation exchange difference A - - - = 1,228 = 1,228 = 1,228
Total comprehensive loss for the year N AT R A - - - - 1,228 (154,281) (153,053) - (153,053)
Employee share option benefits 12 B IR B A ) - - - 382 - - 382 - 382
Transfer to accumulated losses upon lapse ~ F M EHER AR 22
of share options ZihE#R - - - (1,297) - 1,297 - - -
Issuance of preferred shares by a subsidiary M B 20 7 BEA7 6 S8 I
(Note 26) (HiE26) - - - - - - - 123,364 123,364
- - - 915) - 1,297 382 123,364 123,746
At 31 March 2010 REZ-FE=A
==l 15,296 152,049 404 5,781 18,436 (169,857) 22,109 123,364 145,473
Loss for the year AN EH - - - - = (66,417) (66,417) - (66,417)
Other comprehensive income: LY ES TN
Translation exchange difference A A - - - - 17,488 - 17,488 - 17,488
Movement in available for sale Wt 8 o o
financial assets reserve b4 § | - - 117 - - - 117 - 117
Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 T R A - - 117 - 17,488 (66,417) (48,812) - (48,812)
Employee share option benefits 15 5 e A A - - - (258) - - (258) - (258)
Transfer to accumulated losses upon lapse L HE SR A Wb 22
of share options 2R - - - (2,092) - 2,092 = = =
. - . (2,350) - 2,092 (258) - (258)
At 31 March 2011 REF——4
ZHE+—H 15,296 152,049 521 3,431 35,924 (234,182) (26,961) 123,364 96,403

The notes on pages 46 to 126 form

statements.

part of these consolidated financial
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
NHEBESRER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2011 2010
. T S 22
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B Tl T
Operating activities REWEH
Loss before taxation o Ao 1T s 12 (66,414) (154,278)
Adjustments for: i) 2
Share of losses of associates R A Wik 7 2 ] s 4R 19 = 33
Change in fair value of the embedded A 40 B 248 P ik XA AR
derivatives component of convertible notes H A 5y 2 08 A 5 ) = (5,252)
Interest income on receivable from JAE W — ] T O R R Ak I
a former subsidiary Z ] B WA - (6,303)
Finance costs il R AR 10 41,349 97,665
Provision for impairment of receivables, JRE WALk I ~ YA R I B 3%
prepayments and deposits B 2 Vil AL ¢ A4 8 - 5,427
Depreciation and amortization 70 K g 8 7,044 5,739
Provision for impairment of property, L/ERY 21 L A
plant and equipment Ee i 8 — 50
Gain on disposal of property, W A Rz
plant and equipment ZH 6 (4,250) (467)
Loss on dissolution of associated company Yot 8 A ) fif 1L 2 s 4R 8 5 =
(Reversal of)/provision for 1@ B W R A (38 1E] )
employee share option benefits B 7 (258) 382
Changes in working capital BEEEEE
— Increase in receivables, — JRE Wk I > FE A RO
prepayments and deposits T34 38 (1,676) (2,238)
— Decrease in payables and accruals — R ATk E X S E
WA (41,260) (7,585)
— Decrease in financial assets at — A BB
fair value through profit or loss MR 2 W s I = 1,964
Net cash outflow from operations R B B (65,460) (64,863)
Overseas profits tax paid C A 383 S0 P 453 Bt (3) (3)
Net cash outflow from operating activities BREEHZHE WM FEHA (65,463) (64,8606)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

maBlaiak ()

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2011 2010
—F o ZFRFF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it il T# 7t Tt
Investing activities &G B
Purchase of property, plant and Wi AW 3E ~ ME3S I Bl M
equipment and land use rights + Ml RE (10,577) (4,787)
Payment of deposits for acquisition of S A WAL B T B ) S 2 4
hotel properties (7,392) (131,945)
Additions of construction in progress WS E AR T 17 (4,617) (10,014)
Proceeds from disposal and refund from B 3 - B X
termination of acquisition contract for A P A4 AR I B A Ik
property, plant and equipment ERR Y& ]
W £ ) Z 3B K 101,230 9,610
Proceeds from dissolved associated companies I & 2\ &l fif B it A4 3K JE 91 -
Receipt from a former subsidiary 5 WA B JBS A W] AR I = 95,394
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BREGHZ2BHEHA
investing activities (i i) S 78735 (41,742)
Financing activities Al ¥ 16 )
Increase in amount due to JE A B e i e A ] 2
ultimate holding company X JE 3 57,000 216,000
Repayment of other loans 7 Al B K = (12,673)
Other loans drawn down & HCEL L 5 K - 20,000
Redemption of convertible notes 187 [ W) P e 5 = (146,317)
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid A L R AR B T 4 (594) (1,055)
Proceeds from issuance of Wb JBS 2 R BEAT B e 2
preferred shares by a subsidiary Pt 4 K I 26 - 75,000
Decrease of restricted cash 2 PR 1) B 4 ik A - 4,043
Interest paid [EYER PSS (7,364) (20,819)
Net cash inflow from financing activities V&S B) < Bl A 042 134,179
Increase in cash and cash equivalents B 4 T Bl 4 45 {E 4 3% 62,314 27,571
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April B H—HZ B8 K&
Bl & HY 35,659 7,835
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ 56, 53 )y = 5% 2% (1,623) 253
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March REA=ZT—HZBE&ER
Bl & S HY 23 96,350 35,659

The notes on pages 46 to 126 form part of these consolidated financial SRACH Z B 126 H Z M vk i A 45 & W 25 3k

statements.

Z—#kare
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 13 0 85 o Bk

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of VXL Capital Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries together (the “Group”) are (i) hotel investment and
operations and (ii) property investment, whilst those of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Room 603A, 6th Floor,
Empire Centre, No. 68 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The Company has its listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The Directors consider the immediate and ultimate holding
company to be VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited (VXLCPL),

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below and have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as modified
by the revaluation of the available-for-sale financial assets and
the financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar thousands, unless

otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEFGEIBUOR ()

(Continued)
2.1 KA (4])

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

At 31 March 2011, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$384,306,000 and a sharecholder’s deficit of HK$26,961,000.
The current liabilities mainly consist of the outstanding payments
for acquisition of budget hotels and short-term borrowings.
Subsequent to the year end, management has obtained
agreements from lenders to extend the repayment of certain
short-term borrowings totaling HK$416.4 million. The Group
will also develop its properties into budget hotels or commercial
offices for leasing or sale, or, when appropriate, outright sales.
Based on the cash flow projections, certain budget hotels will
be in operation in the coming year and will contribute cash

inflow. In addition, the Group has disposed of hotel properties

W2 —-—HE=ZA=+—H &
£ H A it B B 5 i #384,306,000
70 M B 5 4626,961,0009 JC ©
it B £ o A R I A A
T 22 0 AR B R A K B S A ko
ARAE JE A5 ST H A% - A5 LU BN
] 3% 1% 48 %416,400,0009 JC Z #F
TS0 8 R AR I R o AR 1 R
o Iy 3 5 e O #6895 R O B
FH 32 HE > DA L B 6 8 i i
B WRE B 2 T o MR R B R
T o 25 288 0 R ¥ O 1% I 2R AR B A

located in the cities of Daying, Yilong and Lanzhong, Sichuan AR - MK A AR B A A o B A
province for a consideration of RMB22.0 million (equivalent to AR B AL Y )1 B R BT
approximately HK$26.1 million), RMB11.7 million (equivalent 5 BE 5% M 18 P T 22 T s ) 2E - AR
to approximately HK$13.9 million) and RMB9.8 million 18 43 7 %5 N\ R #22,000,0007€ (#H

(equivalent to approximately HK$11.6 million), respectively.
The Group has already received RMB 22.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$26.1 million) for the disposal of Daying
hotel property, and deposit of RMB 11.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$ 13.4 million) for the disposal of Yilong and

S0 #126,100,0009 8 ) ~ A R4
11,700,00075 (%A 4713,900,000
wot) & A R ¥9,800,00070 (1 %
i #111,600,000% 75 ) ° > H4 H
Al > A S [ O W B K e s

Langzhong hotel properties before the reporting date. Residual Y2 38 5 4 BN Ri%522,000,000
balance of RMB10.2 million (equivalent to approximately 76 (FH 50 £126,100,000% 78 ) - 2
HK$12.1 million) will be received in the coming year. Moreover, ot A A B R R T R T O 2B

the ultimate holding company of the Company, VXLCPL, has
confirmed its intention to provide continuous financial support
to the Group so as to enable the Group to meet all its liabilities
and obligations as and when they fall due and to enable the
Group to continue its businesses for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate

to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Z A2 G WBLET 4x N R 11,300,000
g6 (HHZE 1 #913,400,0008 70 ) © %
ik N B #10,200,00070 (A 25 74 £
12,100,000% JC ) 1% 1 T — 4= B W
[ o 35 o AR W) 2 I A 5 B 8 W]
VXLCPL B i A 58 ) A 48 [ 42
Pl 25 A 5 S o DAA AR AR T R DA
JEAT B 2 P A £ 0 B i - B4
7 4 [ A T 7 G gt R A A AR B O
¥F o HI - HER AL EARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards and interpretations by the

2. ERGHEBOR (4])

2.1 B RAE e (H])

B SR £ A v B s e o U A
FMBERERTERIE TERS
Al R o [ R R 2 A B AE AT
A4 ]t BOR Z B AR b A A
B o B MM AR R e AR A
Z 05 i > sl e K Al st AR A
5 A J B K Y B 2 T - AR

W ik 3 o

() AL IR H il R AN T

Group

The following new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations are mandatory for the first time for the

financial year beginning 1 April 2010.

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements
HKAS 17 (Amendment) Leases
HK - Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements

— Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements
— Current/non-current Classification of
Convertible Instruments
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

Classification of rights issues

HKAS 36 (Amendment)

Impairment of Assets

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedge Items
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards and interpretations by the

Group (Continued)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 5 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

First - time Adoption of HKFRS

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign

Operation

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact

of the HKAS 17 (Amendment), the adoption of these

new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial

effect on these financial statements and there have been no

significant changes to the accounting policies applied in

these financial statements.

HKAS 17 (Amendment), “Leases”. The amendment deletes
specific guidance regarding classification of leases of land,
so as to eliminate inconsistency with the general guidance
on lease classification. The Group has adopted this Standard
retrospectively for annual periods beginning 1 April 2010 in
accordance with the effective date and transitional provisions
of the amendment. The Group has assessed the classification
of land use rights as at 1 April 2010 on the basis of statements
existing at the inception of those leases, and recognised all its
leasehold land as operating leases and be classified as prepaid
premium for land leases which was disclosed consistently
same as year ended 31 March 2010.

2. EERGEBUR (#])

2.1 AR BLHE (4)
(a) ARLE IR Z F 7] RAZNEFT

R R it FE (A

BRATRERAS HRRARERERE RN
15 (87)

BREHREENE HEAEZERBEERD
5% (B k) RLERER

BREHREENE EERSEHARGAER
(BT k) iEGY

B (RBEERE  BOHERFREZHN
RRERA)
- B3

Bl (RBBHRE  WEAASREREEE
HRERE)
i AV

B (RBEERE KRBFAZBRGRE
RRERA)
iR 185

B DA HE — 2 0RE A ¥ 1
R E179E (BT AR) Z 58

B > PRAN % i R AAERT A
I i o ) S B
e R IRUE ONE 3 2
% 5 T R P R Z st
B SR 7 JiE 7K 5 ) o

o AW EEHEREE 7R (T
A) TR | o i A T A I B
A B L AT B A
851 > DL bR BLAE B4 8
e 5l 2 1 5 o A SR H B 3%
BRAE T AR 2 A2 380 H 391 R 0%
PERRSCOR % F4FE I H —
H B & 2 45 B2 190 ) 8 991 4%
Ay JI o A 4R ] O 32 MR
i 5 A BT BH 4G R T Z
2o R - FENA
— H Z b R A3 28 - i
ik BT A L B e 2 R A
5 > 4 A R B FE AT
Al BRE_Z R4
H=+—HIREREZ i —
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 W 5 A ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGEIBUOR (M)

(Continued)
2.1 KA (4])

(b)  if A A 3 Je A 5 [ 5l 787
IR Z ] Je AL 16 7T HE Rl K
it FE

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations, those are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group

Effective for accounting

periods beginning

on or after

R B H Ok 1% B AR

2 & wl R AR 2

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012

7 v ah e ) SR 1258 (AERTAR) A% S Al T < W T R —E-"4#—H—H
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
W A RS 2458 (RERT) o N\ AL 45 82 —E—-—F—H—H
HKEFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2013
A s 1 75 o T B SR o ik % T H —E-=—H—H
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding 1 January 2011
Requirement
B (BT ERERREEY) BEESHEZHMNRE —“E—-—4F—H—H
— AR RS 1458 (IBRTAR)
HKIFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 1 July 2010

B (BT ERERREEET)
— B AE 1998

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

. LT
4 B O

Equity Instruments

DA i T L 91K 8 B s £ £

Amendments to a Number of HKFRSs

B0 T 7 o S o o ) 2 AT

The Group has already commenced an assessment of

the related impact of adopting the above new Standard,

amendments and revisions to existing Standards to the

Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether

substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and

presentation of the financial statements will be resulted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations, those are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKICPA published a number of amendments for the
existing Standards under its annual improvement projects
issued in May 2010, certain of which has not yet become
effective for the financial periods beginning on 1 April

2010. Those amended standards relevant to the Group is:

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek (48)

2. EERGEBUR (#])

2.1 RS (4)

(b)  if A 2 34 Je A 5 [ 5l 727
R Z B aT Je A4 16 7T QI K
2R (A7)

A s 7 A2 OO R R
“E-ERERLHARMNSZER
35 T H A 2% T LA
W2 5T - Jerp TERT I
FFENA - HEKBZHT
][] 1 A A 28K - BLAR B P A
4 S CHES PR

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

T 51 H Mk % B 4
Z 1wt I A
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2011
Clarification of Statement of
Changes in Equity
AW A 5 1 5% S 5 R 2 i — 0 T B A A ) R —F——#—H—H

This amendment has not been early adopted by the Group
and is not expected to have a significant financial impact on

the results and financial position of the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2011.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the group

controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group and are de-consolidated

from the date such control ceases.
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= H RS R B R

(a) B4 A

Bit B A R 5 A 4 [ A R SE
7 B 788 BUR DA % o Y
W PR EEZRREZA
BEHE o AT 8 A A ) 2 15 e i)
75— BN > H Tl AT SRS
SRR B R B Z AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recognised as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in

profit or loss income (Note 2.7).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised gains and losses are also eliminated unless there is
evidence of impairment. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds from the disposal of the
subsidiary and its carrying amount as of the date of disposal,
including any attributable amount of goodwill and any

related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any

accumulated impairment loss (Note 2.7).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in associates are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

2. EERGEBUR (#])

2.2 BREIRH (#)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Operating segments

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the

Company.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK dollars”), which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised

in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
and loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets, are recongnised in other comprehensive

income and are included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities

(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance stated at
statement of financial position presented are translated

at the closing rate at the date of reporting date;

income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognized
in other comprehensive income and presented as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the

translation of the net investment in foreign operations are

taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is

sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are

recognised in the profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on

disposal.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Hotel properties 20 years
— Furniture and fixtures 3 — 5 years
— Office equipment and machinery 3 — 5 years
— Computer and related equipment 3 — 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately to write down an
asset’s carrying amount to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.7). Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are netted off or
recognised within ‘Other gain, net’ in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEFGEIBUOR ()

(Continued)

2.6 Land use rights 2.6 1 3 FH RE

Land use rights, which are prepayments of land leases are stated at
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses (Note 2.7). Cost represents consideration and directly
attributable transaction costs paid or payable for the rights to use
the land for periods between 30 and 50 years. Amortization of
land use rights is calculated on the straight-line method over the

period of the land use rights.

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and

associates

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is made
if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount of
the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that its interests in associates are
impaired. Such objective evidence includes whether there has
been any significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the associates operate or
whether there has been a significant or prolonged decline in value
below their cost. If there is an indication that an interest in an
associate or joint controlled entity is impaired, the Group assesses

whether the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell if their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through

a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is

considered highly probable.

2.9 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the financial

assets were acquired. The Group determines the classification of

its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are classified as held

for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in

this category are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Continued)

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at

fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss as part
of other operating income when the Group’s right to receive

payments is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting
date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as ‘Receivables, prepayments and
deposits’ and ‘Bank balance and cash’ in the statement
of financial position (Notes 2.10 and 2.11). Loans and
receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective

interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e B ek (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are cither designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment matures or the Group
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months after
the reporting date. Investments are initially recognized at
fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried
at fair value. Fair value changes are recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of tax, and accumulated in
equity in fair value reserve. The unlisted equity instruments,
for which the fair value is not reliably measurable, are
measured at cost. The fair value of unquoted instruments
is not reliably measurable if the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
instrument and the probabilities of the various estimates

within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in

estimating fair value.”

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the Group established fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models, making maximum

use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on

entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed through the

profit or loss . Impairment of receivables, prepayments and

deposits is described in Note 2.10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. EERGEBUR (#])

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of receivables

2.11

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
‘Other operating expenses’. When a receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against ‘Other operating expenses’ in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less from date of investment and bank

overdrafts.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Borrowings and compound financial instruments

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the finance costs
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it

relates.

Compound financial instrument issued by a subsidiary of the
Company comprises preferred shares that are convertible to
common shares of the subsidiary, and the number of shares to be
issued does not vary with changes in their fair value. The liability
component of the compound financial instrument is recognised
initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have
an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognised
initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability
component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the liability component of the compound financial instrument is
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of the compound financial instrument
is not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition. The equity

component is allocated to the non-controlling interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Borrowings and compound financial instruments
(Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are incidental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers,
brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities

exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.

Current and deferred income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case they are

recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year using tax rates enacted at the reporting date, and any

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by

the reporting date are used to determine deferred taxation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incidental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

217 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A liability is recognized for the
estimated payment for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or

paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and

a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. The retirement scheme contributions are based
on a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’

employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, known as Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”). The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. At each reporting date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. It recognizes the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any, in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and a corresponding

adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal

value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably on the following bases:

ii)

iii)

Income from hotel room rental, food and beverage and
other services is recognised when the relevant services are

provided.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is

recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis

using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Leases (as the lessee)

(a)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other short-term and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period so
as to produce a constant rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # £ =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

220 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of

economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance. The Group has not used any derivative financial

instruments to hedge its risk exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries in PRC
is carried out by the Board of Directors. Directors identifies,
evaluates and monitors financial risk in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating units. The Group monitors the financial
risk continuously to minimize the risk, such as foreign exchange

risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk , interest rate risk and

cash management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in HK dollars, United States
dollars (“US dollars”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from its
investments which are located in the PRC. Considering that
the exchange rate between HK dollars and US dollars is
pegged, and that RMB is appreciating, the Group believes
its downside foreign exchange risk is minimal. The Group
does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge

its foreign exchange risk.

As at 31 March 2011, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against HK dollars, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year would
have been HK$2,351,000 (year ended 31 March 2010:
HK$2,506,000) lower/higher respectively. The movement
in the profit or loss relates mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gain/losses on translation of RMB denominated
trade and other receivables and trade and other payables,

that affect revenues and other income and costs.

For the translation risk as at 31 March 2011, if RMB
had strengthened/weakened by 10% against HK dollars,
with all other variables held constant, total equity would
have been HK$38,364,000 (year ended 31 March 2010:
HK$37,341,000) higher/lower respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # £ =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to club debentures price risk which
is held by the Group and classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position as available-for-sales financial
assets. The Group maintained club debentures investments
for long-term strategic purpose and the Group’s overall

exposure to price risk is not significant.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
receivables and bank deposits. The exposures to these credit

risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of receivables, the Group closely monitors the
credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from receivables,
prepayments and deposits are disclosed in Note 22 to the

financial statements.

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has diversified its
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties

and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources
including shareholder’s loan, orderly realisation of short-
term financial assets, receivables and certain other short-
term assets that the Group considers appropriate and
advantageous to dispose of. Equity and other long term
financing including strategic partnerships, or strategic joint
ventures are also considered by the Group in its capital
structuring. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of the Group’s available cash and other interest-bearing
loans. The ultimate holding company of the Company,
VXLCPL, has confirmed its intention to provide sufficient
financial support to the Group so as to enable the Group to
meet all its liabilities and obligations as and when they fall
due and to enable the Group to continue its business for the

foreseeable future.

The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve
which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # £ =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s

financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based

on the remaining period at the statement of financial

position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate

their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not

3. s b P ()

3.1 JA B JE B R R (4)

(d) H &2 ()

T AR TR R B B R LR =
B RVE 1 Z 8 R R A
4 W T A 2 W) 2 B B R AR AR
A 2391 AL AT 2 20 BT © 3R
W B 3¢ B 2 4 R B AP OR
B B3 i o R B B
L1270 5/ D o i R

significant. 2 i BELEC IR TG AR A o
Less than Between 1 and
1 year 5 years
—4EN —EHAE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
File Tl
Group 7 4
At 31 March 2011 R-ZF——#=A=+—H
Borrowings fi 416,980 649
Liability component of Was TR Z AEEs
compound financial instrument 18,850 7,250
Payables and accruals JRE A 7k T % M 3 82,924 =
At 31 March 2010 R-ZF—-FH£=A=1+—H
Borrowings fi 325,511 1,336
Liability component of WaE s TR Z AEES
compound financial instrument 10,150 15,950
Payables and accruals JRE A 7k T % M 3 63,227 =
Company YN/ |
At 31 March 2011 N_F——44=H=+—H
Borrowings & 3 367,112 -
Payables and accruals JRE A 5k T % M it IE H 1,582 —
At 31 March 2010 R-Z—FF=A=1+—H
Borrowings & 3 278,631 -
Payables and accruals JRE A 5k T % it IE H 2,474 -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

3. B e ke A B (%)

3.1 JA B LB R R (4)

(d)

Note: Accrued employee benefits are excluded in this table.

(e) Interest rate risk

(e)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits

and borrowings. The Group monitors and limits its interest

rate risk exposure through management of maturity profile,

currency mix and choice of fixed and floating interest rates.

The Group does not have significant cash flow interest rate

risk even it has interest-bearing assets due to the interest-

bearing assets’ short maturity and low interest rate level in

the current market. Borrowings bearing interest at fixed

rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The

Group manages its interest rate exposure of borrowings with

a focus on reducing the overall cost of debt.

The Group currently does not use any interest rate

derivative contracts or other financial instruments to hedge

against its interest rate risk exposure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # £ =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. s R B A B ()

(Continued)
3.2 & A A By B BE

3.2 Capital risk management

The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity
and debts, which include borrowings, bank balances and cash
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company which

comprises the issued share capital and accumulated losses.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for
shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between
higher shareholders™ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economics conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The

gearing ratios at 31 March 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

A5 I 2 A A B A B N E
A A 2 B R > L v B A £ K SR
A7 &5 0% B Bl 4 DA B A O )R 2
AN REAGHE RS > AN RIRERR F5 A A
G Al i ) 35 LB AT B AR I B
wt A -

A A B A 2 R A R A
8 A AE 7 1 A A JBe R 42 3t 15T
B X FA M Z R B = o AR 4R
VS0 A o A B AR - DA
T RIS S5 S A ZRG - A
R IE] e (T R P BE B A oK )
SRS M 2 W AR DL 2R 2 A 2 e
PR i 2 T RSP 1 - Sl PR 68 3 1
U5 B T ) 2 A A o

A S5 LB A 1 B R B
Ao ROE AR R RS
H=t—H LA R R T -

2011 2010

R R R

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T oo

Total borrowings (Notes 27) 5wk ga 3 (B 5Ek27) 417,566 326,704
Less: bank balances and cash Wk : BRAT AR R Bl & (96,350) (35,659)
Net debt 5% 3 321,216 291,045
Total equity HE 2 S8R 96,403 145,473
Total capital HE 4 417,619 436,518
Net debt/total capital ratio BB FHE EELE 76.9% 66.7%
Net debt/total equity ratio 1B 5 B A0 E 25 4B b 3R 333.2% 200.1%

SE - HEZEARREER BT
2 B R 8 ey g A 2 B A
i sk DA RE A I 2 38 DL % R 2 48
WA P B

The increase in gearing ratio during 2011 resulted primarily from
the increment of borrowings from ultimate holding company for

financing the daily operation and a smaller total equity.

74 VXL CAPITAL LIMITED &t 4 @75 it 2 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 0 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B E b PR ()
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 2P Z Ak 5t
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TERBEATFEIIRZMHE TR
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been A AE T BAT Z T o A ) g AR
defined as follows: REWT :
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical o HHIF B kA R BT 5
assets or liabilities (level 1); ZHE(RBHE) (55—
;) s
. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that o BRE—MPrE KB RMEIE
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that A ¥ e B A6 2 i A\ B )
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level % B E 25 1A% ) sk [ 32
2); and (BP 45 £ B 5 A% ) 800w 45
(=) s &
*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o K BHE B S E R A
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level Sif JE 35 7 W] v 5 iR (B
3). AH BB A%Y) (B2
) o
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that TREFIN -F——F=H=1+—
are measured at fair value at 31 March 2011: HAREEEAFHEFTEZEEK
Ffi
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B B=% okl

HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T Fwn Tt Fibx

Assets &
Available-for-sale financial assets  BJ 4t H B B % & &
— club debentures — & & 55 - 2,228 — 2,228

- 2,228 - 2,228
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that

are measured at fair value at 31 March 2010:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

3. s b P ()

3.3 APz A EE (4)

TR F-FFE= A=
H A SR P #% 20 °F- {1 st B 2 A K
it

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

B B B=M ok

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T#E  Tix T

Assets &E

Available-for-sale financial assets 7 4k Hj £ B 7 &

— club debentures — & P % 2,111 = 2,111
Financial assets at fair value A P2 0 1B A
through profit or loss B B 2 W s ¥ e

— unlisted investment -k bk - 31,111 31,111

2,111 31,111 33,222

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s

length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. A E B A B ()
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AP Z A5 (%)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments 7 W 5 B A E BT A A = A8 B A
include: 85 2 B 45 -
*  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar e BMULRAZWHMREKRS
instruments; T A
e Other techniques, such as inputs from recent arm’s length o EMIARTT I (BIREHIAF
transaction or discounted cash flow analysis, are used to R 5 Z Wiy N\ 5 W ek B 4 i &
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. Wi B4 # ) B I aR % TR
ZAFAE
There were no significant transfers of financial assets between S — B AR TAE 4 FE R A%
level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchy classifications. 2 [ S 4 R P B A AR o
There was no carrying value of the level 3 instruments for the HARE_-Z——F=ZH=1—
year ended 31 March 2011 as the balance was measured at cost H Ak 48 BESE = 4 TR 2 IR A 4
for the year. BT 4% A i - Ol SR = A
THZ MR
The Group transferred an unlisted investment from financial TR ARAE E - A 4 1] 8 725 R 4 25 51 MR
assets though profit or loss to available for sale financial assets in Z PR A A — Ik B RE
this current year which is valued at cost due to fair value of such TR 8 2w Bt oY B B O R o K TH R
investment cannot be measured reliably. HEH A AR SV W) SE G R R
JEAAE FHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note

2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial position

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

Critical accounting estimates

(@)

(b)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and depreciation
rates for its property, plant and equipment. The Group will revise
the depreciation rates where useful lives are different to previous
estimation, or it will write off or write down the value of those
assets which are technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that

have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

It is the Group’s policy to recognize deferred tax assets for
unused tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized, based on all available evidence.
Recognition primarily depends on the Group’s expectation of
future taxable profit that will be available against which tax losses
can be utilized. The details of the assessment are disclosed in

Note 28.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting Judgment

(a)

(b)

Classification as investment properties and owner-occupied

properties

The management of the Group determines whether the acquired
hotel properties qualify as investment properties. If the property
would be classified as investment property, the property would
be measured using fair value model. In making its judgment, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent of the other assets held by an entity and the level
of ancillary services provided to the tenants. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to
property but also to other assets used in the production or supply
process. Taking into consideration of all the factors, the Group
considers the acquired hotel properties to be owner-occupied

properties.

Reversal of key management bonus

The management has re-assessed the bonus provision brought
forward from previous year. In making its judgment, management
considers a range of factors, consults with professionals and
carries out the re-assessment using consistent basis. Management
is of the opinion that adequate provisions in respect of such

bonus have been made. Please refer to note 7 for the details.

4. BOREEH RO B (4)

K wt A B

(a)

(b)

Vg x-ka-g/EVEENV:L/ES

7 55 M 4 B I OE T H 2 R
ERB B EMAER LR - W
SN B BEE W 3 > RIS B
AP G o AR B AE A A
By T % 08 W S R 2 BLE R
B A AR OCR B B Sn R —
TP Fr A 2 Ho o > DA R 1) AL
F iRl s < R - £ A A
MEEEZBREHRBAEREY
SEA B - A B A e AR TP R
B 2 A 2 A B o % B bk
Fi A BRI > AR 55 T 2 2 o WA O =2 i
IR E R E L H -

73 2] 3= B B g 76 AL

L gy W Al A I A AR
ZACAL A o B BIRG AR A Hh A B e
7% 18 Iz K - kAL
A $% A58 — 2 FE TR AR R A o
BRI % 7 T % S AG AL Sy 844
wF 1 o 2 B M k7 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BEBHMTIBER

INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive
directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the performance of
those components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are principally engaged

in (i) hotel investment and operations (ii) property investment.

A 4R 7 s 9 v S SRR PSRN (B
PUATE S ) Bk Z P B B Rk
35 5 B A gy R B R - T % S R
B ERETS BEBAT 3 g e A B T 2 SR
AL 43 4 T DR PSR L 7 B % 5
AR 2 R Bl AT ERREZ N
S B 25 R P9 2 S 5 AL R 4 R ()
T 45 e X (i) M SR B o

2011 2010

—s——5 =Z-2&

HKS$’000 HK$’000

Tt T oo

Hotel room rental and other fee income WG 1% % e FHL 4 M Al WA 4,401 1,908
Net realized income from trading securities HBHREEZ OB IRA G - 421
4,401 2,329

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit which is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments. Summarized details of

the business segments are as follows:

a)  the hotel investment and operations segment is engaged in hotel

investment and hotel operations;
b)  the property investment segment is investment in properties; and
c) the unallocated segment comprises operations other than those

specified in (a) to (b) above and includes that of the corporate
office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

Capital expenditures comprise additions to property, plant and
equipment (Note 15), land use rights (Note 16) and construction
in progress (Note 17). Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant and equipment, land use rights, construction in progress and
receivables. Segment liabilities comprise borrowings and operating
liabilities. Unallocated assets and liabilities mainly represent assets and
liabilities used by the corporate office, which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable basis to any segment. They include items such as corporate

borrowings.

The segment results, depreciation and amortization, and capital

5. BAEBM oAb E R (4)

BEA B S AR 3 - AR R Z TN
(B RELS) ~ o 6 FIRE (B Rk 16) R AE
TR (k7)) o EEEZEY
M R R AR T
T2 e M WAk L ARL K, o 3 £ B 40 46 i
Fe 8 U o R 2 0 2 % AR B A
b1 A 58 1 e < P L 38 DA 32 1 B o
oy B BT 7 238 2 B 2 X U > A 4
EAGHFIEHH o

BRER-—ER_F-FFE=ZNH

=t H kAR B T ek o Iy 2
G S A DT e i DA B A B S

expenditures based on reportable segments for the years ended 31

March 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

T
Hotel Total for
Property investment &  reportable
investment  operations segments  Unallocated ~ The Group

% $¢ ' W
S8 RBE  EAaE RAEEH AL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$000
T#T TH#T T#T T#T TH#T

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE_R——4&

ZAZ+—HIRERE

Segment revenue: Vi1 &
Sales to external customers HINEF G = 4,401 4,401 = 4,401
Segment results ViR E Y (4,473) (18,525) (22,998) (2,285) (25,283)
Finance income B WA = 108 108 110 218
Finance costs il AR = (20,941) (20,941) (20,408) (41,349)
Loss before taxation Wi G 45 (4,473) (39,358) (43,831) (22,583) (66,414)
Taxation BLIE = (3) 3) = 3)
Loss for the year 4 i (4,473) (39,361) (43,834) (22,583) (66,417)
Other segment information FoAft 43 3 & B
Depreciation and amortization P18 T 4 B - 6,206 6,206 838 7,044
Capital expenditures BB X

— Property, plant and equipment  — 3 ~ B4 K A - 45,395 45,395 422 45,817

— Land use rights — b o - 15,096 15,096 = 15,096

— Construction in progress - TH - 4,617 4,617 = 4,617
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

5. BEBM o ARE R (#)

Hotel Total for
Property investment &  reportable
investment  operations segments  Unallocated  The Group
G & & CF: 85
MERE T 4 AEAE RABEHE AEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T SR T Tt
For the year ended 31 March 2010 KZEZF—F4
ZA=Z1T—HILEE
Segment revenue: 7 Rl 4
Sales to external customers IR P g - 1,908 1,908 421 2,329
Segment results ViR E S 736 (34,901) (34,165) (34,001) (68,166)
Change in fair value of T B T 1 AR AT
the embedded derivatives RETHEBRZ
component of e Al
convertible notes = 2,626 2,626 2,626 5,252
Finance income WA 6,304 24 6,328 6 6,334
Finance costs g AR (5,782) (44,415) (50,197) (47,468) (97,665)
Share of losses of associates JRE A% Wt 5 A ] s 4 - - - (33) (33)
Loss before taxation W L e 45 1,258 (76,666) (75,408) (78,870) (154,278)
Taxation BLIE = 3) 3) = 3)
Loss for the year 4R s 1R 1,258 (76,669) (75,411) (78,870) (154,281)
Other segment information F Al 43 0 & B
Depreciation and amortization K- Y& - 4,942 4,942 797 5,739
Capital expenditures BB X
— Property, plant and equipment S/ EN: YT = 56,537 56,537 46 56,583
— Land use rights — 4 Huffi F R - 25,092 25,092 - 25,092
— Construction in progress - TR = 10,014 10,014 = 10,014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B 25 ek M RE (%)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BEHEESWBER (4)

INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as at 31

March 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

. = A =V E
= T B A M40 2 20 R

& T -
Hotel Total for
Property investment &  reportable
investment  operations segments  Unallocated ~ The Group
s & W #H
MR E BEE  AEHEE KAEEH A&EM
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
SR SR T-¥ 70 T T 0
At 31 March 2011 R4
=H=1—H
Segment assets o R 48,547 473,867 522,414 12,739 535,153
Bank balances and cash WATH R B B & 10 72,371 72,381 23,969 96,350
Total assets % R AR 48,557 546,238 594,795 36,708 631,503
Segment liabilities Vi ¥=Li 9,243 93,405 102,648 16,079 118,727
Other loans o Bk - 49,261 49,261 - 49,261
Amount due to ultimate JRE A5 5 4442 M A W)k JEL
holding company 4,009 131,489 135,498 231,614 367,112
Total liabilities B AR 13,252 274,155 287,407 247,693 535,100
At 31 March 2010 REF—FE
=f=+—H
Segment assets o3 R 48,445 497,468 545,913 8,090 554,003
Interests in associates T %85 8 i) BE 25 - - - 96 96
Bank balances and cash RATH R B B 4 11,923 11,932 23,727 35,659
Total assets % P AR 48,454 509,391 557,845 31,913 589,758
Segment liabilities Vi N=Li 23,296 59,934 83,230 36,120 119,350
Other loans F A Bk - 46,304 46,304 - 46,304
Amount due to ultimate JRE A5 5 4442 M A W)k JEL
holding company 4,009 93,295 97,304 181,327 278,631
Total liabilities k] 27,305 199,533 226,838 217,447 444,285
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BEB R ER (4)
INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC. The A 55 T T A v % R AR S o AR AR
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010 HEE_F—-—FR_FT-FFE=H
and non-current assets as at 31 March 2011 and 2010 based on = H kAR b [ ) 4 2 g DA K
geographical area are as follows: R R R FREEZA=ET—

H 3% o 1 1 43 2 I ¥ B B AE AU AN F

2011 2010
B R FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl F il
Revenue e 75
Hong Kong s - 421
PRC H 4,401 1,908
4,401 2,329
Non-current assets IE R B &
Hong Kong R 13,030 13,492
PRC 5 473,834 432,796
486,864 446,288
Revenue is categorised based on the jurisdiction in which the We 35 2 % 5 Fn AE R v RE [ HE 4T 43 8 > T
customers are located, Non-current assets are categorized based on IR BN G 2 R 35 B A b AT 4 0 o

where the assets are located.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OTHER GAIN, NET

Ak 3 U 5 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

6. F At £8 A A

2011 2010
SR R RS
HK$’000 HK$’000
il T
Change in fair value of the embedded derivates A B 5 B8 R AT A TR
component of convertible notes oy 2 A FE% 8 - 5,252
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  Hi 854 3 ~ #6285 K 5% 5 Z &L A 4,250 467
Other gain At 28 1] 24 =
4,274 5,719
STAFF COSTS 7. g B RA
The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all T X2 E 2R E R (A

Directors  emoluments (Note 14(a)).

BERZME (MaE14a) ) -

2011 2010

e e

HK$’000 HK$°000

it Tl

Directors’ fees RS 1,190 1,241

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 7 4 B I At e 191 0 B A A 15,319 25,233

(Write back)/provision of A B Z S8

unutilized annual leave (=138 ) 3% 5 (518) 337

Employee share option benefits 11 5 i B e i A (258) 382
Pension costs — MPF (Note i) IR 4 A — 5 ol A TR 4

(i ki) 125 165

Social security costs (Note ii) A R A (B ki) 1,377 1,535

Reversal of bonus provision (Note iii) o] A0 AT $38 65 (B ki) (23,600) =

(6,365) 28,893
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

7. STAFF COSTS (Continued)

Note i:

There were no forfeited contributions during the years ended 31
March 2011 and 2010.

Note ii: All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC

excluding Hong Kong who are PRC citizens participate in employee
social security plans enacted in the PRC, including pension, medical
and other welfare benefits, which are organized and administrated by
the government authorities. According to the relevant regulations, the
Group contributes on a monthly basis based on certain percentages of
the salaries of the employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid
to the labor and social welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans

are expensed as incurred.

Note iii: The Group had in the year ended 31 March 2009 made a bonus

provision of HK$30.0 million on the basis of estimated net profits
of certain projects. The management has been re-assessing the bonus
provision and given the actualization of a substantial number of
factors affecting the estimated net profits, the Group had in FY 2011
adjusted the bonus provision downwards from HK$30.0 million to
HK$6.4 million.

8. OPERATING LOSS

7. R WA (4)

Mk REZ-—HER_-F-FF=
HE+—H R4 - W ek ez gt
Ko
Pt REa : AR Z (O 2 45 7wk ) BB
AFNA B EARZIERH 2
R op B AT 2 R B Ak R B
B o 5% 555 ) by BT 1 PR i A
B> Py 2% 4 55 1R AR 4~ SRR I I i
A A o 2 HEURH IR AL 451 > A 4R 18 45 H
MERAE H ¥ 4 2 45 T A 4 b 45 T
T Ak 4 R B B A Bk (MR
#F BB ok EAE B2 RO
2 A R S 8 o
Fitskiii: KEBMRBRE -FZHAE=H
= —H kR AR T H A
w4l R A A8 4148 530,000,000 %
JG o 5 BILJE O F W AT AS A AL 3 4
1 56 47 H Bl 2 JE R B A wH AR 2 BRI
F o BORE R —— 4 B AR
JE 1% A6 AT 4 45 H130,000,000% 7T
N %6,400,000%5 G ©

8. REEHE

2011 2010
e =
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Tl
Operating loss is arrived at B FS-1 L ekl
after charging/(crediting): (FFA) =
Legal and professional fee YRS 2,886 724
Consultancy fee L P 127 44
Depreciation and amortization - WE 3 7,044 5,739
Provision for impairment of receivables, JRE Wk T~ A sk I
prepayments and deposits 2 4 Vol AL 3¢ 445 - 5,427
Provision for impairment of property, plant and LUE B T YRR R ]
equipment = 50
Loss on dissolution of associated company fiFe L T 8 A W) 22 s 1R 5 =
Auditors’ remuneration A% B T <
— audit — & 638 587
— non-audit —EEH 264 278
Net exchange loss [ 58, s 15 15 41 128 564
Operating leases — land and buildings RBHE — L RS 12,361 13,483
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 U 5 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

9. FINANCE INCOME

9. M#EWA

2011 2010
B —R—%E
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T#son
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 218 31
Interest income on receivable from JFE W — P i B g A W] AR 2
a former subsidiary A B WA = 6,303
218 6,334
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. il & A
2011 2010
—2——F —%—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T-#o0
Interest and finance costs on convertible notes T e B B 4 2 ) R R A AR - 76,100
Interest on finance leases Tl A A S 79 160
Other interest and finance costs on amounts AR AR N BB R Z R EHZ
wholly repayable within five years Fo b A BB il R AR 41,270 21,405
41,349 97,665
Note:  HK$1,894,000 (year ended 31 March 2010: HK$889,000) of finance Fitsk: & W% T HE A& R AR

costs were incurred for the compound financial instrument.

11. TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax (FY 2010: Nil) has been made
for the year as the Group has no assessable profit for the year. Taxation
on PRC profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation in the PRC.

JG) e

11. B¢ JE

JRE R B e A it 5 o

1,894,000% ¢ (£ =2 —F4F
=H=1—H L4 ¥ : 889,000%

FH A A 4R 0 7 A 4 € S S0 R R B i A »
HOR A P9 S S 9 A o R 45 B A S A
(ZF 4B ) o o B e A
Z BUIE CUAR ¢ v I A R Al B 2 AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

11. TAXATION (Continued) 11. 868 (4)
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of HEEmMBERNCHBRZ BLIE S
comprehensive income represents: 15
2011 2010
R R RE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Current tax — PRC B 390 58 0 — e 3 3
3 B
The tax on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from the theoretical A 45 [H) [ A5 1 )R 4R = 0 T B 4229 P
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable A A B REF Bl R Gt Bl
to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: BB Z 2B T :
2011 2010
SR DR FRF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tw#oT

Loss before taxation I 36 I s 1 (66,414) (154,278)
Share of losses of associates JE Al W 42 2 ] Mg 1 - 33
Loss before taxation I 36 I s

— Company and subsidiaries — A ] % Bt A (66,414) (154,245)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 298 1 7 4% H) 5 R I i A 2

profits in the respective jurisdictions H b R G B IE (12,955) (27,591)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses S B H A B S = A IE 5 2% 7,537 17,075
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue B B UK 25 =2 6 JEL 5% 28 (311) (2,444)
Tax effect on temporary differences not recognized A% i 52 Z 0T I 26 B =2 Bt JE 5% ¢ - 4
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets A T 0 908 i o JE P 2

was recognized 7t T s 1R 5,732 12,959
Tax charge BiIH X 3 3
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13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 U 5 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent
of a loss of HK$128,483,000 for the year ended 31 March 2011 (year
ended 31 March 2010: loss of HK$102,297,000).

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
ORDINARY SHARE FOR LOSS FOR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(a) Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the
loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

years.

12.

13.

A %y w) BE g 18 A N RE A AR
W K& 18
AAARMBERENBHZKE _F
——E=ZA=Z21THIEEEZERL
EE Xk -PN KN Y
128,483,000 7 (R E R —FHE=
A=+ —HILEE : E51H102,297,000%
JG) o

AR > vl HE 5 5 AN AN A
Wi 18 A i 5 2 B R AR
B 1 18 i )

(a) B B 8 B B A i ) 7% DA AR AR
2 Vi) R B R A ON HE AN B 1R BR DL T
AT 3 B 2 R T 2 R 5

2011 2010
—z——F —z—%f
Loss for the year attributable to AR 2\ A HE £ R A N AL
equity holders of the Company, HK$ 000 FENEHE T (66,417) (154,281)
Weighted average number of ELBEAT 5 0 B 2 R 7 4 8
ordinary shares in issue 1,529,600,200 1,529,600,200
Basic earnings per share, HK cents B B B AR Wz A - A (4.34) (10.09)

(b) Diluted earnings per ordinary share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The conversion of all
potential ordinary shares arising from share options would have
an anti-dilutive effect on the earnings per ordinary share for the

year ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010.

(¢) The preference shares issued to the non-controlling interest for
the subsidiary have no potentially dilutive effect to the ordinary
shares of the Group for financial year ended 31 March 2011
and 2010 and as such no diluted earnings per ordinary share is

presented.

(b) 4 B % 38 bt 44 9 ¥ ) T A A8 B B
A EL T8 A 0 5 B 0 B
A% - 775 8 A B % 0 B 2 TR T 4
WA o 40 R D P i) 7 A 2 P
AEETERGHEEE—F——
HEZA=Z+-HERZF-FH=
H =+ —H k4 5 2 45 8% i B
i ) 8 S A

(c)  CLh i Jig 2 =1 i B A7 7 I 4 B M
MR R RE T
ER-B-BFE=ZH=+—HIL
S B4 B 2 A A T O Tt R T
TE R 2 > PRI L SN i 2 50 4
900 B 4 9 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14, 3 3 Fo = 4055 BTG T &
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EHME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the BEZFE—-—HF=H=1+—HIL4E
year ended 31 March 2011 were as follows: PECAT SRS & 3 T At R -
Employer’s
Employee  contribution
Discretionary Other  share option to pension
Name of directors Fees Salaries bonuses benefits™* benefits scheme Total
=)
BE  BIKEGH
HRES g 4 Llipidn HmA RBERA  fEhfa %

HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
T#n Ti#x Ttz T Tk Ttz T

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) SERKIEW = = = = 4 - 4
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO (i) 7 5 2 i) - 1,869 - 238 - 5 2112
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei H i 290 1,137 - 73 = - 2159
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.p PR fATAL 300 = = = = = 300
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.2. ERRMLAvs L 300 - - - - - 300
Mr. David YU Hon To EE 300 = - - = - 300

1,190 3,006 = 970 45 5 5,216
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14, 3 35 o 4055 PR T8 T 4
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EHEME (H)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the BREF-FE=ZHA=+—HILE
year ended 31 March 2010 were as follows: EOA SR EMNSEEZEWT :
Employer's
Employee  contribution
Discretionary Other  share option to pension
Name of directors Fees Salaries bonuses benefits™ benefits scheme Total
&)
B RkEHH
£33 e ¥a Wi tea HAmA  BRERH i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T i T TH T T i

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) LK) = = = = 180 = 180
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO (ii) AR 2 ) - 5,326 - 674 180 12 6,192
Mr. XIAO Huan Wi H M 341 545 = 486 = = 1372
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.2. P AT AL 300 - - - - - 300
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, |2 ZWRIEE KP4+ 300 = = = = - 300
Mr. David YU Hon To TR 300 - - = = = 300
1,241 5,871 - 1,160 360 12 8,644
i Other benefits include housing allowance. o HAth 45 ) 645 5 12 B o
(i)  An Executive Director, Datuk LIM Chee Wah has waived his (i) PUTEFEERB R RFEILRE
emolument for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010. SRR TR REZ]

=t HIREREZ B4 -

(i) Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO has resigned on 7 August 2010 (i) EtHERETR 2 FEN\A
£ HBHE -
No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to BREZF-—HR R -FFE=
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of HZE+—H k4 > AR 6] I fi 1
office during the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010. A A0 3 S A AT AT T 4 - A0 2 08
B2 55 i A A 4 8 S A\ A 4R R
% I < AR TR T A S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14. 5 95 Jo i 4% 4 B g I &

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (#1)

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) T4k A\ H:
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in 7 A JE AR A5 ) T 44 5 v I 2 A
the Group for the year comprise 2 directors and 3 employees LEFEHEERA=Z4EE (ZF
(FY 2010: 2 directors and 3 employees). The details of the —REMBEE WA EFR=4
emoluments payable to the 3 employees (FY 2010: 3 employees) RE) FNEMZ=HREE (=
during the year are presented below: FoREMBEE - Z4REE)Z

LB E YL

2011 2010
ZE - ZE R
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T¥on
Salaries and other short-term i 4 B Al 55 g B AR A
employee benefits 2,059 4,255
Pension costs — defined contribution plan TR A 4 ol AR — S At ki 32 22
2,091 4,277
Number of individuals
N
2011 2010
ZE - ZE R
Emoluments band T 4
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001%#% G — 1,000,000%5 JC 2 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%5 76 — 1,500,000% JC 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%5 7T — 2,000,000%5 7T = =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001%57C —2,500,000%5 J© = 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y036 ~ B4 Bk i

(a) The Group (a) ASHEH
Office
Furniture equipment Computer
Hotel and and and related Motor
properties fixtures machinery  equipment vehicles Total
WEDE GREEE Tt 2% B 2 H Lk
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
SR T T T T T
Cost WA
Ac 1 April 2010 REF-FENA—H 222,466 16,540 7,265 2,106 4,333 252,710
Additions RE 41,480 199 431 3,707 = 45,817
Disposals & (11,494) (156) (1,825) - (26) (13,501)
Reclassified as held for sale EX Ve V(s
(Note 24) & (Hwk24) (14,067) = = = = (14,067)
Exchange difference [ 5 25 10,451 422 266 145 38 11,322
At 31 March 2011 REF——4
SHESIE 248,836 17,005 6,137 5,958 4,345 282,281
Accumulated depreciation PR
At 1 April 2010 I S 223
JgA—H 4,969 12,347 3,035 1,056 1,713 23,120
Charge for the year A B 3 1,608 1,128 1,088 380 828 5,032
Disposals & (410) (62) (839) - (25) (1,336)
Reclassified as held for sale WUk R A
(Note 24) (FffE24) (501) - = = = (501)
Exchange difference FE b 75 % 246 180 186 29 23 664
At 31 March 2011 REF——4
=A=+—H 5,912 13,593 3,470 1,465 2,539 26,979
Net book value IR A
At 31 March 2011 NF——A
=f=+—H 242,924 3,412 2,667 4,493 1,806 255,302
Cost A
At 1 April 2009 RERBNENA—H 154,892 12,420 7,232 2,029 4,330 180,903
Additions wE 56,010 490 10 73 = 56,583
Transfer from Construction EAE R TR R
in Progress (Note 17) (MaE17) 13,552 3,601 = = = 17,153
Disposals ik (2,585) - = - - (2,585)
Exchange difference HE ot 7% 4 597 29 23 4 3 656
At 31 March 2010 R R4
=H=+—H 222,466 16,540 7,265 2,106 4,333 252,710
Accumulated depreciation LSRR
At 1 April 2009 REZZNUENH—H 4,693 11,585 1,673 779 865 19,595
Charge for the year A B 3 322 691 1,355 276 847 3,491
Disposals & (61) - - - - (61)
Provision for impairment ok M 18 £ - 50 - - - 50
Exchange difference i ot 75 15 21 7 1 1 45
At 31 March 2010 A S 355
=H=+—H 4,969 12,347 3,035 1,056 1,713 23,120
Net book value Ik T -
At 31 March 2010 A S 355
=H=+—H 217,497 4,193 4,230 1,050 2,620 229,590
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 903 ~ Be s Skt (48)
(Continued)
(b) The Company (b) A4 H
Furniture Computer
and Office  and related Motor
fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
R R NS B R
KE i BB B ok

HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$000
T#T T T#T T#T T

Cost BEA
At 31 March 2010 h A

=H=+—H 5,062 87 526 - 5,675
Additions wE - - = = =
At 31 March 2011 R4

=H=+—H 5,062 87 56 - - 5,675
Accumulated depreciation Rl #
At 1 April 2010 P/ e 2

mH—H 5,062 87 484 - 5,633
Charge for the year SE N B 32 - - 15 - 15
At 31 March 2011 REF——4

=H=1=H 5062 87 o - - 5,648
Net book value IR i
At 31 March 2011 REF——4

=H=+—H _ = 27 - 27
Cost B A
At 1 April 2009 R EERNAE

/HH—H 5,062 87 480 = 5,629
Additions wE = = 46 - 46
At 31 March 2010 R

=H=+—H 5,062 87 526 = 5,675

Accumulated depreciation Rt %

At 1 April 2009 RERFNE

mMH—H 5,019 83 474 = 5,576
Charge for the year 4 B 5 43 4 10 - 57
At 31 March 2010 R —RAE

=H=+—H 5,062 87 84 - S 5,633
Net book value I i
At 31 March 2010 PR —RAE

=H=+—H - - 42 - 42
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(©)

(d)

The net book value of motor vehicles held under finance leases of
the Group and the Company were HK$1,376,000 and HK$Nil
respectively (31 March 2010: HK$1,967,000 and HK$Nil
respectively). The lease terms are within five years which owned
by the Group. None of the leases include contingent rentals.

Pursuant to the signed sale and purchase agreements, the purchase
consideration of hotel properties at the amount of HK$161.1
million as at reporting date (31 March 2010: HK$148.5 million)
were fully settled by the Group. The management believes
the future economic benefits associated with the properties
will flow to the Group as the controls of the properties have
been transferred. The above balances of hotel properties were
recognised in property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
statement of financial position even the formal registration of
ownership under the PRC jurisdiction have not been completed
on the reporting date.

16.LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights, which represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values, are analysed as

15. ¥ 3% - HE o Be e i (48)

(c) AHEE KA A ARG AL P R
Z 3R H MR T - E 43 0l 451,376,000
WThEHT (2 -2E=H
=+—H 45 %1,967,000% 7T K&
TV o0) o FLEF R AN -
BEEBEAMEEAREING - 2%
5 2 R AL 4 o

d MEBEEHEITZEHAW® K&
LRI A /- il = I <
161,100,000¥ 70 ( —F—F44=H
=+ —H :148,500,000% 7T ) Z il
JEWEZ B - hN S
Z VI RE O AR AL - PR A B g
1 » B27% 25 W S5 HH R =2 R 20 4% o )
25 A AAS S [ o il 45 B ] 9
[ 2 IE R BEA MBS R A H M
ARGE K, > M e T 3 A AR B
B B BRI Z Wy 3 - MRS %
5 Y HERR.

16. - M {5 i B

ACER R - M0 PR b A (R AT AE
B B AR E R IR A ) AT

follows:
Group
A4
2011 2010
R R FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Cost: AR :
At 1 April BHEA—H 83,696 65,186
Additions 7 15,096 25,092
Disposals & (8,268) (6,818)
Reclassification as held for sale (Note 24) BT 20 S 5 R AR (B sE24) (6,363) -
Exchange difference [ 50 2 A 3,818 236
At 31 March W=H=+—H 87,979 83,696
Accumulated amortization: ZEh e
At 1 April BMHA—H 3,906 1,848
Charge for the year NP 2,012 2,248
Disposals & (555) (199)
Reclassification as held for sale (Note 24) Tk e A (Khik24) (466)
Exchange difference [E 38 7% #H 320 9
At 31 March W=H=+—H 5217 3,906
Net book value J T
At 31 March W=H=+—H 82,762 79,790
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

16. LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued) 16. - 3 i A HE (%)
The Group’s interests in land use rights at their net book value are A5 [ S - b il A 2 BE R (R L MR
analyzed as follows: FEFI) 2 F -
2011 2010
—B——f %%
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Outside Hong Kong, held on: WA > B DL F 45 JE
A :
Leases of less than 10 years TEDTZHE = =
Leases of between 10 to 50 years THE B AEZHE 82,762 79,790
82,762 79,790

Pursuant to the signed sale and purchase agreements, the purchase
consideration of land use rights at the amount of HK$55.8 million
as at reporting date (31 March 2010: HK$61.9 million) were fully
settled by the Group. The management believes the future economic
benefits associated with the land use rights will flow to the Group
as the controls of the land use rights have been transferred. The
above balances of land use rights were recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position even the formal registration of

ownership have not been completed on the reporting date.

MBOETZHE W REHCBRY
5 AR R H % $055,800,0009 78 (=
F—FE=H=1—H :61,900,000%
JG ) Z Ml A ) RE = B AR o el R X
S - Bl A T RE 2 e o B O RS - Rt
B AH s o B R 45 bk RE A B 2
R 2R 488 ) 2 19 S A AR A ] o A TR 2
P RERGCIA RS H MR S8 R - M bk
- B o R 45 % A R A B IR DR

17. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 17. £ TH

Group

7 4
2011 2010
R AR R R
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T
At 1 April WA —H 4,302 11,416
Additions wE 4,617 10,014
Transfer to property, plant and equipment R R 2K ~ B TRk A - (17,153)
Sales of properties HiR-EYES (382) -
Refunded B (173) =
Exchange difference [ 58, 5% % 185 25
At 31 March W=HAH=+—H 8,549 4,302
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 U 5 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. Fit & 2 w) HE 4
Company
Y, NG|
2011 2010
R R
HK$’000 HK$’000
il Tl
Non-current assets: IE R B & R

Unlisted shares at cost e b A > R AR E 330,000 330,000

Current assets: Ui B E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wt Bf B A ] =2 K TE 188,206 186,763
Less: provision for impairment loss Uik : AN 4B = A (136,580) (53,173)
51,626 133,590

Current liabilities: b R=R-
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A B 8§ A W] =2 KTE 12,196 53,319

Note:  “U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited (“UIHHL”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has issued preferred shares to a third
party during 2009, as disclosed in Note 26. As a condition to such
issuance, the Company subscribed an additional 7,409 common
shares of UIHHL at a total consideration of HK$330.0 million. The
consideration was satisfied by the set off of certain intercompany

advances made by the Company to UIHHL.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. The carrying values of the amounts
due from/to subsidiaries approximate their fair value. The amounts
due from subsidiaries as at 31 March 2011 and 2010 and the amounts
due to subsidiaries as at 31 March 2011 were all denominated in HK
dollars.

BiERE s R AR S e e IR A R (TR
M AR I ] AR R 2 4 B
AH) R ZRRZLEN N —LE=
J5 B AT 05 S8 B o N R K k268
B o R U AT BE S IR 2 e — TE A
% AR 2 ) 7 3 B4R 330,000,000
5 I 7R B A7, 400 B IR HA % A%
JBe 5 38 JBe 4 o A7 R AR A 75 208 3 i
A2 ] i) % 1 e s e JR A Hh =2
O\ ) [ Gk 2 7 A A e

JE W, B AN T A W) 2 sk T S e AR
G B B AR FRAR o W HEA B 4
] 2k VL R T L B SP A o R
Fo—ERF-RE=ZA=+—HZ
R S B 2 W) 2 KT DL S A A
ZH=d B AT B8 2 R Z K
YL TeEHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o B s A B e (A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

18. Bt & 2 vl BE 4 (%)

UTHIIR=F—-—F=A=Z+—HZ
B0y AR

18.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2011.

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
kA BRE /B EEATRA/REFE A
e T e 5 R EX VS E S R 2 s Al i il
2011 2010
S
Arrow Star Investment Limited Hong Kong Inactive 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
HKS$1
BB AR it LEES VBT (B 25 1378 2
e
Chong Qing “U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Limited liability company in PRC US$875,000
TR 1 R I A LA s A AR A A ¥ B 0 A Ak A
875,000 76
Daily Right Limited Samoa Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1
HIEARATR BE e 7 B 4 e e T 2 156762
T A
Grand Boom Investments Limited Samoa Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1
BRER B RA R i P TR ER AR AT RAPSed
il
Great Partner International Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
MR BB RA i TR IR 1B A 2 138 76 2
R
Great Partner Investment PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited * liability company consulting in PRC HK$12,000,000
MR (R A RAF W > A R e H B A B R HAUSEE S
it i) R 2 12,000,003 72
Proper Class Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
B AT A it TEFF B I LB {E 25 1378 2
e
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Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

18. Pt J&§ 2> vi) HE i (%)

Particulars of issued

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities

share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
kB aE, /B ar CRATIRA/ RE i ¥ A
&1 Ho 5 B ok O R A EX SV Y E3 ] AR B % 2 A i i e
2011 2010
S CFRE
Rich Field International Limited Samoa Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1
R A R A i JE TR WA G R QR ER1E T Z
T e A
Success Key Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong US$1
R B IR A7 TR A e B JE A B TR WA G R IR EA1KTEZ
T e e A
Sun Shell Limited # Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
HHARAR- it TR WA G R IR 1372
T e A
Superior Fortune Investments Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Limited in Hong Kong HKS$1
HEREARA it T 7 8 B 4 IR 1372
T e B A
“U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 7,410 common shares of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong USS$1 each and 2,590 Series A of common
preferred shares of US$1 each shares
R 14 5 R 1 A A e JE T B TE T B 4 74108 R T 2156702 *100% ¥ 78 ¢
W
2,590 B e T 2 1R 70 2
AR K
“U” Inns & Hotels Investment Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Limited * in PRC HK$1
R 4 5 R 1 A7 R Fi 7 H B 4R 4 1B TH B2 1386 70 2
0 e e A
“U” Inns & Hotels Management Co., PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Ltd. Linzhi Tibet liability company US$2,200,000
B 2 0 R O 4 s A REAE A oy % Ak B A
HRAH 2,200,000 7%
“U” Inns & Hotels (Bu Er Jin) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%

Management Co., Ltd liability company in PRC US$1,390,000
R 1 % B 1 5 L (T R ) s A REAE A 7 F R 1 A 7 Ak B A
HIRAT 1,390,000 76
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

18.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

18. Fft & 2> v HE £ (#45)

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
LM BRL /L CRATIRA/ Rh A 7 A
&1 W R R EX S0 YS-E3 ] R AR B 8% 2 A i 5 i
2011 2010
S CFRE
“U” Inns & Hotels (Chengdu) PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
Investment Management Limited liability company consulting in PRC US$2,000,000
TR B AR R (AR ) 4 4 B s A7 PR AR A A o 1t 4 B % ki A
AR i i R 2 2,000,000 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Ding Xi) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Limited liability company US$3,000,000
TRH % B (279 ) i 45 51 s A7 PR TR A 7 43 ki A
ARAT 3,000,000 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Dun Huang) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Limited liability company US$3,700,000
TR A% B (B ) 0% 4 3 s A RETAE A LEFS Ak A
ARAT 3,700,000 7%
“U” Inns & Hotels (Jin Chang) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company US$1,147,980
TRENZAE (&8 ) 5 i s A7 R AR A 7 i % Ak E A
ARAT 1,147,980 70
“U” Inns & Hotel (Jing Gang Shan PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Shi) Limited liability company in PRC HK$53,000,000
TR 1 % BRI A (S Ly ) s AT R AR A A F R 0 AR kA A
HRAF 53,000,000% 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Long Nan) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company RMB18,500,000
TR I % B (RS ) 0% 7 3 i A B EAE A LEE ik A
HRAT R 18,500,0007%
“U” Inns & Hotels (Ninghai) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company in PRC US$6,000,000
TR A % A (B ) 305 4 2 s A PR AR A 7 H B s k7 A
AR 6,000,000 75

100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

18. Pt J&§ 2> vi) HE i (%)

establishment and

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
R VETAA CBATIROA /M A
4 o e vk AR R R EX ST ¢St YLt TierFaid i % B i
2011 2010
S CFRE
U Inns & Hotel (Si Chuan) Limited PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
liability company in PRC US$10,500,000
IR B 2 BT 1 (9 )IT) A B A A BR AR A A7 v I 4 [RUASES
10,500,0005 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Tong Hua) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd liability company in PRC US$2,249,000
TREY 8 (GEL ) i % 1 P A IR EAE A A v 3 4 ik fit A
HIRAT 2,249,000%7¢
“U” Inns & Hotels (Tu Lu Fan) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company in PRC US$1,770,000
IR B % R B (5 7 o ) i A R EAE A 7 H I 3 4 ik fit A
HRAT 1,770,000% 76
“U” Inns & Hotel (WeiFang) Limited PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
liability company in PRC US$4,550,000
TRE AR (8507 ) A IR A s A IR EAE A e R 7 4 FRUNEN
4,550,000 7
“U” Inns & Hotel (Wei Hai) Limited PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
liability company in PRC US$1,670,000
TRE AR (i) A IR A s A R AR A 7t 3 4 ik A
1,670,000 78
“U” Inns & Hotels (Wu Han) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company in PRC US$1,400,000
TRtz (SR ) i ) 45 5 B A AR AW 7 v 7 4 B il fit A
AR A 1,400,000 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Xi An) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company in PRC US$10,100,000
Rtz (V5% ) i i 4 5 A R EAE A A7 v I 3 4 [RUAES
FIRAT 10,100,003 7
“U” Inns & Hotels (Xiang Fan) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company in PRC US$3,470,000
TR A % b (8% ) i 16 PR A IR EAE A A7 v I3 4 il fif A
HIRAT 3,470,000% 7

Annual Report 4£ #t 2010/2011

101
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

18.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

18. Fft & 2> v HE £ (#45)

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
kAL /B CRATIRA/ Rh A 7 A
&1 M 56 R i AR A EX S0 YS-E3 ] R AR B 8% 2 A i i e
2011 2010
i
“U” Inns & Hotels (Yun Fu) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company US$2,600,000
RITEE (ZF ) )54 B s A7 PR AR A LEE Y ik i A
H AT 2,600,000 76
“U” Inns (Wafangdian) Hotel PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co. Ltd. liability company in PRC HK$28,000,000
TRH %R (RUGE I ) i 78 2 s A7 PR TR A 7 v B O e ik A
AR 28,000,000 76
“U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company in PRC HK$25,650,000
TRH %R (8 1) 3% 4 5 s A7 RETAE A 7 v B O A Ak 5 A
ARAT 25,650,008 G
“U” Inns Hospitality Management PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Co. Limited liability company consulting in PRC US$$2,000,000
SN (L) AR W A R AR e H B 1 A B R Ak B A
it i) R 2 2,000,0003 76
“U” Inns & Hotels Information PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
Technology (Shanghai) Limited liability company consulting in PRC US$$2,000,000
R %8 (L) f B 5ehl s AT R AE A Tt B 4 L kA A
HRAH it i JR 2,000,0003 76
“U” Inns Investment Management PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Limited liability company consulting in PRC US$2,000,000
TR (L) REH s A AR A T v B B A Ak A
H AT i M 2,000,0003 76
VXL Corporate Advisory (Shanghai) PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
Limited liability company consulting in PRC US$140,000
o A SR R () s A PR AR A Te v B B O B R ik A
AR i i 2 140,000 76
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

18. Pt J&§ 2> vi) HE i (%)

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
kB aE, /B ar CRATA /G A
&1 Ho 5 B ok O R A EX SV Y E3 ] R o 2wk Al i i e
2011 2010
S CFRE
VXL Management Services Limited * Hong Kong Management services 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
L L A R A ¢ ik TE7 ¥ 1R 0t 4 B R IR 132
T e A
VXL Nominees Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1 each
ik 7 ¥ B 4 e IR 2 19 T2 2
T Ay
Yanlian International Petroleum British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Limited in Hong Kong US$1
S A 8 PR LT By BB UBe i 1762 100% 100%
LY

Shares held directly by the Company.

These companies do not have English names. These are only translation of

their Chinese names.

Subsidiaries audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

< B AR A F B o

A BEATRMISCET LTS
JErh A B 2 B

# W) 2y v AR JROK B & it R i
% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. Wi 2 2w HE %
Group
A4 ]
2011 2010
- Z2-%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T o0
Share of net assets of associates JRE A Wt 25 A\ =) & R R - 96
The movement of the interests in associates is as follows: Wi A wlREZR S B F ¢
Group
A4
2011 2010
—3——F —F-%A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#o0
At 1 April BMH—H 96 129
Share of losses before taxation JFE A B Wi Jis 48 = (33)
Dissolved i HL (96) -
At 31 March W=H=+—H = 96
The Group’s share of the results of its associates, all of which are AL EAG I AR (B B ) 2 3%
unlisted, and their aggregated assets and liabilities, are as follows: HEHEEERAMBWMT :
2011 2010
—g——F —2-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T oo
Assets B - 96
Liabilities =K - -
- 96
Revenues & - —
Loss for the year AN i 1E = (33)
|
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. B2 A vl (%)

Details of the associates as at 31 March 2011 are as follows: R EZA =T HEBE A G
HESI T
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Interest indirectly held
Name establishment Principal activities issued share capital by the Company
4 kAR L/ EERE DR BATEN AN ARG 2 M
2011 2010

= e i

Cruise City Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 0% 30%
(Note a) ( FifiEa) US$1 each
3 J A T RE VR 100/ 4 ¢ T {5 25 156 78 2
9 It e iy
Cruise City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Inactive 2 ordinary share of 0% 30%
(Note b) HKS$1
Wi () WA (Hatb) B LB 2B B A 198 T
48 It
Note: (a)  Cruise City Holdings Limited was dissolved on 23 March 2011. ff%E: (@) Cruise City Holdings Limited &
WoF——HF=H_+=HM
B o
(b) Cruise City (Hong Kong) Limited was deregistered on 17 (b) FHimyw (FH)ARAFCR
September 2010. R -FEJA L H RS
ko
20.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20. W] {it H B B B A
ASSETS
Group Company
A4 A2
2011 2010 2011 2010
Bk “R—BE "B —2—BF
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T# T T

At 1 April WHEA—H 2,111 2,111 660 660
Disposed (Note a) A (FfsEa) - - (660) -
Transferred from Financial assets (i N - Rw )
though profit or loss (Note b) HEH IR Z

S 705 Y At

(B ED ) 31,111 — - -
Fair value gain 28 W A 117 - - -
At 31 March R=E=A=+—H 33,339 2,111 - 660
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20. 1 (b B B S B A (4)

ASSETS (Continued)

Note: (a) The Company disposed of club debenture to a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Hart Industries at a consideration of HK$1.1 million.
The gain of the disposal at the Company level was approximately
HKS$0.4 million. Subsequent to the reporting date, the Group has
disposed the subsidiary to VXLCPL (Note 34).

(b) The balance represent the investment in unlisted investment
which is valued at cost as the fair value of such investment cannot

be measured reliably.

Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted club debentures
of golf clubs and unlisted investment which are denominated in

Renminbi.

The fair value of the unlisted club debentures are determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. None of the financial assets is impaired.

The available-for-sale financial assets are not exposed to credit risk.

fif5E:  (a)

(b)

A2 7] DL AR 1,100,000 % T8
A E T 2 N
/A W] Hare Industries © &t A< 23 ]
M & > M8 0 4 45400,000%
JG o AR H A% o A T %
Fi¥ Je§ 2 ) B 3 VXLCPL ( fff i
34) °

Ik LB E 2 B - R R E
PR R TS > WO AR
i e -

TR S A R ER B 2 Ik
Ewi g (EUANRWEHE) -

Ik B B £ 25 2 A P BR G A6 7
FERE o %SG E 5 ¥kl A I AT B 2
5 W (A ) > B A R
B A S Al Wt o WA B 85 A G A
T 3t H R S A N R 32 A L o

21.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. A P E B R i SR 2
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 5 &
Group Company
A4 A2 H
2011 2010 2011 2010
“%——F -F-FF -B—F "F%F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Fix  FHx  F#x  F#x
Unlisted equity securities ) E I M N N
in overseas 1 April PUH—H 31,111 33,075 — -
Transferred to available for sale T 2 AT Y
financial assets (Note a) B K
(Bt 5Ea) (31,111) - _ _
Disposals (Note b) W& (KEb) - (1,964) = =
31 March =Z=HA=+—H - 31,111 - -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

21. 4% 2 P E 75 08 8 45 51 ik
W 5 & (%)

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note (a): The Group transferred an unlisted investment to available for sale Fi 5 (a) <
financial assets as this investment can no longer be measured reliably.
Consequently, this investment is now carried at cost.
Note (b): Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented P 5E (b)
within ‘Operating activities” as part of changes in working capital in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.
22. JE Wk
22.RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND RN
DEPOSITS
Group
KA M
2011 2010
e =
HK$’000 HK$000

T# T

HIA— IR B i 2 AP A
3 5 VT St B - WOAC SR PRI R
A T 0 A B -
U > % 2 B B IR R B AR B R

POIRACHEE MR R SR 2

ERGGHESRELZ [KEF
BNEI K EEEEEEZ—
(P

JH ~ TEAT K H K%

Company
A2
2011 2010
—2——% —F—%F
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T

Non-current Ik Bp 4
Deposits for acquisition of W B T D S
hotel properties %4 106,912 130,399 - =
106,912 130,399 — -
Current B 4
Trade receivables B 5 e IR 5k 215 98 - -
Other receivables L Al JRE W ek JE 18,894 13,611 6 6
Deposits for acquisition of W S 2
hotel properties e - 55,006 - -
Other prepayments and deposits At T A5 2k I B
e 9,696 13,420 2,943 2,907
28,805 82,135 2,949 2,913
Less: provision for impairment ik + Y AR 9% A - (5,435) - -
28,805 76,700 2,949 2,913
135,717 207,099 2,949 2,913
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

22.RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 22. FEWL 3k JE ~ TR AT 3K JH R 1% &

DEPOSITS (Continued)

A significant part of the Group’s sales is by credit cards or against
payment of deposits. The remaining amounts are with general credit
term of 0 to 90 days. As at 31 March 2011, the trade receivables aged
within two months are not past due. Management is of the opinion
that no impairment provision is made to other receivables as there is no

indication of impairment noted for the year.

The carrying amounts of receivables, prepayments and deposits
approximate their fair value due to that the effect of discounting
is not material. Long term deposits are expected to be matured in
short period of time. As at 31 March 2011, none of the receivables,
prepayments and deposits was impaired. (31 March 2010: Provision
of impairment of HK$5,435,000 was made for the deposits for

acquisition of hotel properties).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s receivables, prepayments and

(#)

ACHR ] Z 8945 S HOHR 40 DU R Ak
L O Z 3R AR o R B R AR
BN PFFEELTH - RF——F=
H=+—H - IRBERMEA NZH 5 E
W B K S A 78 301 o B R R A o R AR
A JBE Sl JHE 3% B0 AT 1] 9k L B 5% - 0SNG S g
Lt WSk S 42 0 8% £

7 B B 5 2B N S K - ol Rk O
T K I R % 4 2 M T SR A P
FA A o 1= 0 % < FEU0 A 490 PR 2030 o
ZE-EEH =1 SEEGK
W AR R B RE (2%
—REZAZ A H RO Y
Z ISt PR AR 5,435,0009 78 ) ©

ACHR [ Z ME ORI ~ T AR E R 2

deposits are denominated in the following currencies: M THI L DA T 2 £ W R
Group Company
AL A2
2011 2010 2011 2010
—%——§ ZB—%F "% —F "% FF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T# T T
Hong Kong dollars It 15,800 16,481 2,949 2,913
Renminbi A R 119,917 189,045 - -
United States dollars Ew = 1,553 - —
Other currencies Fofth g5 W - 20 - -
135,717 207,099 2,949 2,913

108 VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Ki#i4: il A bR 2 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 U 5 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

23.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. BAT R R S B
Group Company
A AL A
2011 2010 2011 2010
S SRBE SR E CRRE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T Tt T
Bank balances and cash on hand SRAT 4L Bl 4 96,350 35,659 249 325
The carrying amounts of the bank balances and cash are denominated SRATAS R R B Z IR EE S DL R A &
in the following currencies: AHAE :
Group Company
AR B A2
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®——% -ZT-BF "2 "2-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt T T
Hong Kong dollars oo 30,141 19,868 151 24
Renminbi NN 38,293 1,648 = =
United States dollars En 27,895 14,108 98 301
Other currencies I Ath £ ¥ 21 35 - -
96,350 35,659 249 325
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24.ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 27 January 2011, the U Inns & Hotel (Si Chuan) Limited (part of
the hotel investment of operations segment), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with a third
party to dispose of the hotel properties located in the cities of Yilong
and Langzhong, Sichuan province at a consideration of RMB11.7
million (equivalent to approximately HK$13.9 million) and RMB9.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$11.6 million) respectively.
The said subsidiary will realize, on completion, a gain on disposal of
HKS$4.1 million. The completion date for the transaction is expected

by July 2011.

Since the agreement was signed on 27 January, 2011, the carrying
amounts of the hotel properties, land use right were reclassified as
“Assets held for sale” in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current

Assets Held for Sale and Discounted Operations”.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 0 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

24, F¢1E 5 2 & E

WoE A t+EH ARKAFZ
] 422 4 Y A DR 2 D R B % AR (g
) A B A W) (G B & 2 3 2
4 ) B — & 5 = 05 w1 or — JE 1k
H B AL A Y 1] 48 R R % T i 2 T
N 3 - RAE 4 0 % N 511,700,000
g6 (FH 258 0% £113,900,000% 75 ) K& A R
19,800,000 (FH 457 £111,600,000%5
JG) o HATERAR > bt B A R A S B
B Z BF #54,100,000% 00 « ZTER 5 Z
TR HYEM A —F——FLtH-

MR #® R —F——F A =+tH
R > WY 3 - M A R R T
AR 48 7 98 B 5 e o i U 5 S 0k [ A
8 2 JE 30 B B A S B AR Ik AR SR
R B (Rt B ] -

2011 2010
—R——f SRR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tl T

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights - Hb fi

The above properties were not in operation during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

25. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. B £5F 3 JH % HE 51 JE H
Group Company
AR A
2011 2010 2011 2010

SR R -RE R R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt T# 0 T 70 T#HL

Trade payables (note b) B 5 AT MRk
(B ED ) 222 59 - -
Property acquisition cost payable B Ak 4y 3 WAL B ol A
(note c) (FFaEc) 2,681 3,050 - -
Accrued bonus JE 5H A6 AL 6,400 30,450 = =
Accrued expenses for transaction of Wi JEWIER 5 Z
hotel properties JE 5t 37,315 26,089 - —
Other payables and accruals Al JRE A 35K I
JE St I H 23,202 35,408 1,582 2,474
Tempory receipts for return of BIERY K
properties & sales of properties HEMHRZ
TR 23,295 - - -
93,115 95,056 1,582 2,474
(a) The carrying amounts of the payables and accruals are (a) WEATKIE K REFHE H Z HR A8 T3
denominated in the following currencies: VLR 3 £ WA
Group Company
A 4R A4y
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2——% —2-BEF "% —F "FBF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#T T T#5T T
Hong Kong dollars W 14,601 39,691 1,582 2,474
Renminbi N 78,514 53,812 - =
Other currencies oAt 5 ¥ - 1,553 - -
93,115 95,056 1,582 2,474
(b) As at 31 March 2011, trade payables of HK$210,000 and HK$12,000 b)) REF——F=ZH=ZF—H-"HIYRE
(31 March 2010: HK$45,000 and HK$14,000) were aged within one i B 210,000 7€ $212,000% 7C ( —
month and between one and three months respectively. FFE=ZH=1—H : 45,0008 70 K%
14,000% 70 ) Z IR % A 7E — 1A A W &
—Z=HHR-
(¢) This represents the remaining balance of consideration payable for (o) FRBLME— T EY 3 (ZF—RE=
acquiring one hotel property (31 March 2010: one). HZ+—H:—H) BAREZ 65,
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26.ISSUE OF PREFERRED SHARES BY A

SUBSIDIARY

On 28 October 2009, “U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited
(“UIHHL”) entered into a subscription agreement where UTHHL
agreed to issue and the subscriber, an independent third party, agreed
to subscribe for 2,590 Series A preferred shares (“Preferred Shares”) at
a total subscription price of HK$145.0 million based on a subscription
price of HK$55,984.55 per Preferred Share. The subscription price
was partially set off against the loans by the subscriber to the Group of
HK$70.0 million, and the remaining HK$75.0 million was settled in

cash. Subscription was completed on 1 November 2009.

The Preferred Shares are convertible into 2,590 common shares
(“Common Shares”), representing 25.9% of the issued common
shares of UIHHL upon conversion of the Preferred Shares. Holders
of the Preferred Shares are entitled to a preferred return of 6% per
annum prior to the conversion of the Preferred Shares. Holders of the
Preferred Shares shall convert the Preferred Shares into common shares
at the ratio of one Preferred Share to one Common Share at the latest

three years from the date of issue of the Preferred Shares.

Details of the issuance of Preferred Shares can be referred to the
Company’s announcements dated 27 October 2009 and 29 October

2009. No conversion has been made during the year.

The Preferred Shares are compound financial instrument which is
separated into two components: a liability component and an equity
component. The liability component was recognised as the discounted
value of the preferred return payable during the three years period from
the issuance of Preferred Shares until the last date of conversion into
Common Shares. Interest expense was calculated using the effective
interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 10% to the
liability component. The equity component was residual amount of
the proceeds from the issuance of Preferred Shares less the liability

component.

The liability component is presented as “Liability component of
compound financial instrument” in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The equity component is presented as “Non-

controlling interest” in the statement of changes in equity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

26. Fit & 2 W) #% 47 B Sk

SRBIETHZTINE R ERE
T TG 5 B A PR A (TR i B A it )
AT L — TR T o R L > IR B R AR
ERE W R BEAT IR N (BSLE=T5)

Al R 2,590 AR B 48 S e (T4 %8
TR 1) - A5 A e R BB 5B B 55,984.55
s JC HH S > A8 R 18 25 145,000,000
T o il i (E AR 4 LR NS T A AR
Z £ 3%70,000,000% 7T 1K 45 > T £ 4
75,000,000%% 7C HI DL B 43 % A o i i
HOUR-ZFRET—H—HZEHK

B 26 Bt m) i A% A 2,590 B 4 i ([ 57
JBE L) o AR B 7 1 5 IR At IR R ) 5 A
P AT S B ] 2 25.9% o 856 R
AN RE R 05 56 T 0 i 4 B A AR
6%Z B Il o B S B N ZE R e
JBeBEAT H H O F = AR - e — R e ik
ek — LN 48 L 2 B AR > 519 45 21 L o 4t
T 0 B o

BTS2 R T 2 A AT R %
FREFASHEH R BNETA
A JUH TR A o 4R R O AT
jﬁo

BB R MB TR S RE S
B o B RER T 4r o BRI 2 3 B S
JBe B AT Z R 5 e Z B AR H B =4
S0 i B A 2 8 S o 3 . B B AR R o AR
A3 HH 5 T B R 3 S R A R
B 1005t 5T o BE 2 5 43 2 B e R 3%
A7 B 45 sk JEL U £ AR 43 Z AR A

FAEHE > S AR A M BIR VLR R Z T
BB TR Z S ] o b 4R 4 51
TemEss B RN Z TR B mE AR | o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 U 5 e ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

26.ISSUE OF PREFERRED SHARES BY A 26. Bt & 2 w] 3% 47 B e ik
SUBSIDIARY (Continued) (%)
HK$’000
T
Proceeds of issue AT P A5 Ak 145,000
Liability component £ AR 43 (21,636)
Equity component HE 25 HB 43 123,364
Liability component at date of issue PEEAT E H Z B4 21,636
Interest expenses for the year ended 31 March 2010 #WEZFR—RE=ZH=ZT—HIEEEZ
A8 3 H 889
Liability component at 31 March 2010 R-F—FE=ZHA=Z1+—HZABKD 22,525
Interest expenses for the year ended 31 March 2011 #EZF——H£=A=T—HIEFEZ
A B 3 1,894
Liability component at 31 March 2011 RoF-—FEEZA=ZTHZAERS 24,419
The Group’s liability component of compound financial instrument A4 18 G B % T B 2 A 4 A R
were repayable as follows: W
Group
A4
2011 2010
-5 ZB—RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Within 1 year — current portion —4E Ny — BV 4 18,850 10,150
Between 1 and 5 years — non-current portion — R 4E N — I BT AR 4 5,569 12,375
24,419 22,525
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

27. BORROWINGS 27. {6 K
Group Company
A AL AW
2011 2010 2011 2010

Bn CR-RE %N %R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tibe T Fiw W

Non-current JE BP9
Obligations under Rl A AR
finance leases 586 1,193 - -
S b T -
Current E(1B: 1]
Other loans F At B3R 49,261 46,304 = —
Obligations under Tl L R
finance leases 607 576 - -
Amount due to ultimate JRE A5F 5 4% 122 I8 ]
holding company K IH 367,112 278,631 367,112 278,631
416,980 325,511 367,112 278,631
417,566 326,704 367,112 278,631
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

27.BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, the Group’s and the

Company’s borrowings were repayable as follows:

27. f sk (#)

R_B——HE=EA=ZT—H A F—F
FEZA=Z+—H o REERARA T ZH

il £ Sk ZEAE R I
Group
L |
Obligations under
finance leases Borrowings
Al L R i 1§ 3
2011 2010 2011 2010
“®——% -%-%F "2 "T-%F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T ¥t T
Within 1 year — current portion — 45 A — B 4y 607 576 416,373 324,935
Between 1 and 2 years —IEEWEN 586 607 - -
Between 2 and 5 years WEETLEN - 586 - -
Non-current portion kBT 43 586 1,193 = =
1,193 1,769 416,373 324,935
Company
YN/
Borrowings
i3
2011 2010
e L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Within 1 year — current portion —4E Ny — BP9 3 367,112 278,631

The obligations under finance leases are effectively secured as the rights

to the leased asset revert to the lessors in the event of default.

Pursuant to the written agreement with the lenders entered into
subsequent to the reporting date, the repayment period of other loans

and amount due to the ultimate holdings company of HK$416.4

million have been deferred for more than one year.

#o

45'50

FH B 7 8 4 1 D0 R AN R T
H LN - S 5 L O b S 4K

R A 4 H A% BELGR ON BT 3 2 31 1%
ik > At A K e I AT o A e e A ) R OH
416,400,000%5 70 Z 72 7k 1 O 4L =88 4 —
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

o EY =
27. BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. f5 3 (#)
Group
p: N L]
2011 2010
SR R RS
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Finance lease liabilities Tl A A AL A
— minimum lease payments: — g JC AL 85 ok K
Within 1 year —4EN 655 656
Between 1 and 5 years —HEEREN 601 1,256
1,256 1,912
Future finance charges on finance leases & L 2 R 2k W B (63) (143)
1,193 1,769
The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair value. A8 3K 2 W T L B O P (B A A o R i
The discounting effect over the borrowings are not significant as they H o> p R sk 8 — 4 AR - SO T
are repayable within a year at the reporting date. BB AEKR
The effective annual interest rates at the reporting date were as follows: e H 2 B BRAE R R
2011 2010
gg “2-gx
HKS$ RMB US$ HKS RMB US$

70 NN Kt ey NI k7t

Other loans Jofl 5 - 15.0% - - 12.0% -
Obligations under finance leases B ERSE 5.2% - - 5.2% - -
Amount due to ultimate holding company B s A A W) 0O 10.0% - 10.0% 10.0% - 10.0%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27.BORROWINGS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

27. f sk (#)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

Ak 3 U 5 e ik (%)

K Z B T 73 DA T 9 4 A

Group Company
AL M A2 ¥
2011 2010 2011 2010
SR ZB—BE B4 “B—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T L T-# T¥# L T-#T
Hong Kong dollars #IT 304,593 221,887 303,400 220,118
United States dollars EIL 63,712 58,513 63,712 58,513
Renminbi N 49,261 46,304 - —
417,566 326,704 367,112 278,631

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 28. W& Bt B JH & & N A

LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate

to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the

taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to

settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows:

B A AT AT R A T 5t B S O
S TP 390 0 ] 4 A AR HR RS > T T A
ot B 4 i L R AR T 8 A IR R
i R — OB B A P B = T A5
A B > B TR R o A AR
B VT 54 0 S A L B LA IR o
e BT

Group
A 45 M
2011 2010
-5 —B—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#x T#T
Deferred tax assets K HE A JE B A 181 181
Deferred tax liabilities B 2t Bt IH £ 5 (181) (181)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 28. ¥ 4k Bt Y & A e £ H
LIABILITIES (Continued) (#4)
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the RN > B T R U0 2R P e R 2 IR B
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during EERE (AR R RILEB T :

the year are as follows:

Accelerated
depreciation
allowances Tax losses Total
24 Bt 5 1 Bt IE Jis 18 k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt T-#o0
At 31 March 2009 ®ERIE
EF=GF—[F (169) 169 -
(Charged)/Credited to consolidated (FkEH) FtAEE 2
statement of comprehensive s R (Ffakin)
income (Note 11) (12) 12 =
At 31 March 2010 /N S 223
ZH == (181) 181 =
(Charged)/Credited to consolidated (HBRA), FEALGES
statement of comprehensive income ZTH & (FsELL)
(Note 11) _ _ _
At 31 March 2011 /I S 2
ZH == (181) 181 =
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are as follows: RERZIBAEBIELE EW T ¢
2011 2010
-5 —F—%H
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Unutilized tax losses A B = BiIHE g 18 63,900 53,829
Accelerated depreciation allowance o 58 8 4% 4 403 431
64,303 54,260
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

At 31 March 2011, the deferred tax assets on the Group’s and the
Company’s unutilized tax losses of approximately HK$332,641,000
and HK$127,306,000 (31 March 2010: HK$284,155,000 and
HK$120,654,000) respectively, which can be carried forward
against future taxable income, have not been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the Group’s tax
losses, HK$223,345,000 (31 March 2010: HK$202,464,000) has no
expiry date and HK$108,195,000 (31 March 2010: HK$81,691,000)
expire within five years under the current tax legislation of the
respective jurisdictions. The Company’s unutilized tax losses have no

expiry date under the current tax legislation.

No deferred tax liabilities has been provided for the unrealized gain
on the value of available-for-sale financial assets as the gain is tax

exempted under the Hong Kong tax jurisdiction.

Ak 3 W 5 e B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

28 R BEJH & & M £l

(%)

MN_F——E=H=+—H A&R4&EH
B A oy w] B A W45 DL BB B AR E
R B A Z A& B F B IE S 18 4 A
332,641,000 70 & 127,306,000 76 ( —
ZRE=ZH=1—H :284,155,000%
JC 5% 120,654,000% 78 ) » fH B H 1% i £l
2R U5 AS T TE W > W i A R AR A A IE
B o MR R A5 ) Wk RE W 2 B AT B R
B > A 7 42 8 58 35 s 48 P > 223,345,000
WL (ZF-FHE=ZA=1+—H:
202,464,000% o ) I % JE W H 1
108,195,000 (ZF —FF=H
=+—H :81,691,000% 75 ) HIl i’ F.4E N
B o IR BT BB R - R AW Z R

5ol P v L 4 I 0 o A

R0 A 5 O T8
B 2 R A B WA 0 9 0 O > W I

WA LA B W 2 P A8 2 A £ A

29.SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
2011 2010
SR R FE
HK$°000 HK$ 000
T T-#T
Authorized: BiE
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,000/8 35 4 it >
HKS$0.01 each A B f50.01 % 0 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: AT M e
1,529,600,200 ordinary shares of 1,529,600,200 5% 35 %8 B >
HK$0.01 each B BT 150.013#5 0 15,296 15,296
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

29.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share Option Scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2008, 42,000,000 Share Options

were granted under the Scheme with an exercise price of HK$0.77 per

share. The related weighted average closing price immediately before

the date on which the Share Options were granted was HK$0.77 per

share.

The Share Options to subscribe for shares are exercisable as to:

(i)

(ii)

For Directors or employees who have been employed for not less

than two years immediately before date of grant:

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

up to 20% immediately after date of grant;

up to 46.7% immediately after 12 months from date of
grant;

up to 73.3% immediately after 24 months from date of
grant; and

up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of

grant.

For Directors or employees who have been employed for less than

two years immediately before date of grant:

(a)

(b)

(c)

up to 33.3% immediately after 12 months from date of
grant;
up to 66.7% immediately after 24 months from date of
grant; and

up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of

grant.
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29. A (#)
ik J5E HE 5t 1

RRECZZNE=ZA=+—HILEE
A > 42,000,000 Mg B HE #2452 51 ) 8 %%
i > 47 08 45 2 15 820,775 o0 o 25 42 ik i
REAE 452 1 F 300 T = T R o S 2
2B 0.77W I ©

Ji FBEHRE W7 T B IR ] 47 DA R AL o

(i)

(ii)

BRI W H %R A DR
W2 R i

(a)
(b)

()

(d)

FpEs I H R B2 E20% 3
Z PR R E 208 A &
W HE46.7%

B pE 2 H R E 24 A &
WZE73.3% 3 K

ZpE R H R E 3 A &
W2 HE100% ©

MR ZZ W A e %D R W
HFZEFLRERN S

(a)

(b)

(c)

ZhE Sz B 208 H &
% 3#33.3%

Rz B E 2408 H &
W2 #66.7% > K&

Z RSz B E 36 H %
2% #100% ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

29.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of Share Options granted during the year ended 31
March 2008 estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model is
HK$0.2658 to HK$0.2941 per share, which was based on valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer, Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited. The calculation takes into account a share price of
HKS$0.77 per share, exercise price of HK$0.77 per share, a risk-free
interest rate of 4.02% to 4.15%, a volatility of 42.34% to 50.62%

with expected life for 2.5 to 4.0 years and no expected dividend.

None of the Share Options granted under the Scheme were exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2011 and 2010. The related weighted
average share price at the time of exercise during the year ended 31
March 2008 was HK$0.80 per ordinary share. These shares rank pari

passu with the existing shares of the Company.

Movements in the number of Share Options outstanding and their

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

29. AR (4)

Jile Je e it ) ()

BREZFRZRNF=ZH=Z+—HILEE
¥ th 2 0 IR RE A OF 1H MR B8 e B o B
S A B B b R RN AR A R AT Z A
{8 > $R M1 ) 50 — &7 W0 390 A A A A 47
i 5t A 5 BR0.2658% 7T £0.29413
JC o M 5T SR T B A 4 B0 77 O ~ 47
AR 18 0. 779 00 ~ MR B A 24,0290 %
4.15% ~ UK 1R 42.34%%50.62% % T 5T 4%
W2 528 4.04F - WAL FHFT LR ©

BREZR—-— R —-FIE=H
=4 — H kAR B W AT AR 5 T E
BHZHBRE - RE_FF/NE=H
Z— H IR B AT A B =2
T 39 1B A % 9 JB 5 A8 JBE0. 80 HE IT © 4 4F:
JB Ay BEAS 28 B B B 52 R 45 b AL o

il AR AT D B R S ) 40 S5 A B e~
WITHEEZEBWT

2010
R B

Average Average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
in HK$ of Share in HK$ of Share
per share Options per share Options

11 4 BT
17 B 15 S J AR S J
(#75) WH (¥#70) %H
At 1 April WA —H 0.77 21,400,000 0.77 29,800,000
Forfeited B 0.77 (9,200,000 0.77  (8,400,000)
At 31 March R=E=A=+—H 0.77 12,200,000 0.77 21,400,000

For the year of 2011, 12,200,000 outstanding option were excisable.
For the year of 2010, out of the 21,400,000 outstanding options,
15,093,000 were exercisable. Share Options outstanding at the end
of the year will expire on 22 August 2012 with an exercise price of

HKS$0.77 per share.

W ——4E > 12,200,0004 M R AT
2 J B HE W T AT o R R — B4
BE 5 821,400,000 1 A A7 i 2 Jifk JBE
> 15,093,0004) 4 T AT o 4R 48 R ARAT
i Z W R — T — AR )\ =+ 2
H e i - A7 1848 4 B 1B 0. 773 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&
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(a) The Group (a) ASHE M
Available- Employee
for-sale share-based
Share financial compensation Exchange Accumulated
premium assets reserve reserve reserve losses Total
LLs VARt 5 b
45 M8
Bt i i 0 7 B8 HE 55t f 2t A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T T T T T
Ac 1 April 2009 REZZZNENA—H 152,049 404 6,696 17,208 (16,873) 159,484
Translation exchange difference M 24 - - - 1,228 - 1,228
Employee share option benefits 1 BB IR A = = 382 = = 382
Transfer to accumulated losses B B 2 o g 2
upon lapse of share options ) - - (1,297) - 1,297 -
Loss for the year ERER - - - = (154,281) (154,281)
At 31 March 2010 REZ-BEZA=4—H 152,049 404 5,781 18,436 (169,857) 6813
Translation exchange difference S A - - = 17,488 = 17,488
Employee share option benefits 1 5L e A A - - (258) - - (258)
Transfer to accumulated losses T B PR 2 o et
upon lapse of share options ZitE# = = (2,092) = 2,092 =
Loss for the year FERER - - - - (66,417) (66,417)
Movement in available for sale Wl o O
financial assets reserve - 117 - - - 117
At31 March 2011 REF—-—HEZA=F—H 152,049 521 3431 35,924 (234,182) (42,257)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

30. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) The Company

30. i i (#)
(b) AT

Employee Available-

share-based for-sale
Share  compensation financial ~ Accumulated
premium reserve  assets reserve losses Total
VA 0y S A T it
2B 5 18
it By 16 i £ Bk W 2 ik Eit i A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T SR T T SR
At 1 April 2009 KRR
MA—H 152,049 6,696 404 60,576 219,725
Employee share 1 E i Jt HE i A
option benefits = 382 - - 382
Transfer to 7 I Pt HE 2 38 I
accumulated losses LUEHE Y X |
upon lapse of share
options = (1,297) - 1,297 -
Loss for the year FENEHE = = = (102,297) (102,297)
At 31 March 2010 R-F—F4E
ZH=+—H 152,049 5,781 404 (40,424) 117,810
Employee share 1 E i It i
option benefits = (258) = = (258)
Transfer to N
accumulated losses LUEHE Y R
upon lapse of share
options = (2,092) = 2,092 =
Loss for the year EREH - = = (128,483) (128,483)
Movement in L B A
avaiable for sale il i 2 )
financial assets
reserve = = (404) = (404)
At 31 March 2011 RER——4
ZH=+—H 152,049 3,431 = (166,815) (11,335)
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

31. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is

the lessee

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group had commitments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises,

which fall due as follows:

317

(a)

A8 L AR I — AR W 2 R
HA

REF-—HRZF-FF=]
b H o ACHE AR AR R R
BHEAZRDLTHEYM XM ZMHE
VI Z ARPEWMT :

2011 2010

R —R—%E

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T T#T

Not later than 1 year A 38— A 2,626 10,741

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —4E P, BB @ AR 1,223 837

3,849 11,578

Capital commitments (b) BEAKYE

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has commitment in relation HNoZ——E=ZA=1+—H &%
to acquisition of hotel properties from China Post Group, and VA A I i e R AR A

the outstanding commitment amounted to RMB6.20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.4 million) (31 March 2010:
HK$49.1 million).

Other than those mentioned above, the Group has commitments
in respect of refurbishment costs contracted but not provided for
HK$11.0 million and HK$5.6 million as at 31 March 2011 and
31 March 2010 respectively.
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NG Z AR o % A AR T N R
6,200,0007C (FH 457 #97,400,000%5
L) (ZR-FE=ZJ=1+—H:
49,100,000%5 70 ) °

b Bakgoh-id 2 ——HE=H
=t HR-F-FE=ZA=Z1
H > A B A BB AR Z 3T 4
AH R 48 5 =2 7R 3% 43 7l 4% 11,000,000
W J5,600,000%5 JC ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 #¢ £ —&F——4F=H=—1—H ILF/E

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

the year:

(a)

(b)

Interest payments

During the year, the Group has paid interest and accrued interest
payable to VXLCPL, the ultimate holding company, amounting
together to HK$32,315,000 for the loan as disclosed in Note 27
(FY 2010: HK$10,523,000).

The loan from the ultimate holding company is interest bearing
at fixed rate, unsecured and repayable in September 2011.
However, based on the mutual agreement on 4 May 2011, the

term of the payment was extended to September 2012.

Rental charges

The Group has entered into a tenancy agreement with the
landlord, Smart Forward Services Limited, a corporation owned
by a Director, to lease a residential unit at a monthly rent of
HKS$55,000 effective from 15 May 2006 for a period of 2 years.
The lease has been renewed on 13 May 2008 for further two years
commencing on 15 May 2008 at a monthly rent of HK$66,000.
A rental deposit of HK$132,000 has been placed with the
landlord. The rental expense paid for the year is HK$99,000 (year
ended 31 March 2010: HK$792,000). The lease expired on 14

May 2010 and was not renewed.

32. BB R 5
45 g S OB 7 o 4T 2 %8 5 BB

(a)

(b)

F B Atk

AE N > AR 4R TRk M R 27 B
B2 Bk A A R R A
H VXLCPLZ # & I & 5t Fl B %
32,315,000% JC ( =& — T4 M B
A JE 110,523,000 78 ) ©

B ARF S5t A 42 T > ) B K % i 5 )
REHE - I R AR T4
JUH B R o AR - LR % — —4F
T VY 2R B AE - Ak R A
EF-ZFRA -

il 4 BA 32

4 B B % £ Smarc Forward
Services Limited (HH— % #EHHEAH
ZAHE)F L —HA S g A
55,0009 70 FH B — 0 41 8 BLAL -
MM H —FEANELATHAR
BRI R AR o B DR R F )\ 4R
HAT=EHEAWE H ZFFN
AEFLH - H B3R - A AL %566,000
W0 o AN AR ) B i 2 2 AP AL A %
4:132,000¥7C © 4 - A Z Fil 4
BH 32 %599,000% 78 (RE R —F
EEZH=1—H R4 792,000
Wot) MECHR T -RELH
U H B . AR EW -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 # %2 =& ——4F=H=—1—H ILF /&

32.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c) Key management compensation

32. B Wk 5 A2 o (#)

(c) BTG

2011 2010
g CFowE
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Tt T-# o0
Director’s fee R 290 341

Salaries and other short-term employee Wt 4 B At 1 1 B
benefits 3,976 10,614
Employee share option benefits 1 B i 1B B i A 45 361
Pension costs — MPF BIRE B AR — 4 5 26
4,316 11,342

33. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 33. LR B
The Group previously included “Gain on disposal of fixed assets” in A 45 [ 38 At [ ol B 1 s O s 2 R

“Other operating expenses”. Management believes that their inclusion

in “Other gain, net” is a fairer representation of the Group’s activities.

There was no impact on loss for the year and earnings per share for
the year ended 31 March 2011 and 2010. Prior year consolidated
statement of financial position were not affected by this reclassification
of items and hence the consolidated statement of financial position as

at 1 April 2008 was not presented.

34.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 13 April 2011, the Company entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement with VXLCPL to sell a wholly-owned subsidiary, Hart
Industries at a consideration of HK$1.5 million. The gain of the

disposal was approximately of HK$0.1 million.

35.APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial information on pages 39 to 126 were

approved by the board of directors on 22 June 2011.
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A THC AR B3 o S BB £ -
A5 B R A TG A 2800 36 9 T 9
F: R e 44 0 3 7 -

HBEE-F-—FR2F-FF=A
=t HAR AR B Z AR R 1R R 1 M i A
N S 55 o R AR AR A B R DL AP AR 32
b 45 TH H 2 TR > BUE B > I 4
IR RF)NENH —H Z 56 M5
KDL

34. #e o W& A

35.

R~ —4ENH+=H KA 5
VXLCPL#E] . B 7 1k - th & 2 % [t 6
/3 ) Hart Industries » {815 251,500,000
G o B W25 49 %5 100,000% JC ©

it o 5% B S B R AR

ERFOR_F-FAAZTZHHM
HERREHFOHER20HZ HE Y
B E R



“AGM(s)”
B SR 47 R 1 |

“Articles of Association”

[ AL =mARAmAD |
“Associate(s)”
[T 2 A A

“Board”
[FEHE

“CG Code”
[ (R |

“Company” or “VXL Capital”
(A W) | gl [ b 4 i |

“Companies Ordinance”
[ (v fEply ]

G =
Directors

[ % |

“Group”
(A 4R )

“HK$”
[#7E ]

“HKFRSs”
[ i 1 5 it 5 4 )

“HKICPA”
[ 98 7wt fili 2

“Hong Kong”
[ 5

“Listing Rules”
[ CEmigany J
“Model Code”

[ CEHESFRLD |

Glossary
) 52

Annual General Meetings of the Company
LA SN

The Articles of Association of the Company
A2 T AL A R A )

Has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules unless otherwise specified in the

financial statements

Foffs ChrinBLRD B R T 2 - B0 3R 0 0 A LS R 2 B0 e o

The Board of Directors of the Company
AAFRMERT

Code of Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

CRETALRY Bh 8%+ DU BT R Cis 3848 ¥ W AL )

VXL Capital Limited
R S AT PR 2 ]

The Companies Ordinance, Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended from time

to time.

HWHEBIE =1 250 (ARG (AR RFEET)

Directors of the Company

AN W

The Company and its subsidiaries

A0 ) B S B Jag 2

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
WL > U e B

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
7 9 A 5 e o i

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

ERa A

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Hp A N R S A [ v R N AT I

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from

time to time

FH I 32 T T B (R I 2 5 B A B Rl o i BRI (AR A& T )

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules
ChET AR B ek 0 ki 8847 A\ o8 3 AT 38 27 38 5 1 B e s L)
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Glossary (Continued)

i 52 (#)

“RQN Committee”
[RQNZ H & |

“PRC”
e i

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
AR

“SFO”
[ Gz R s pepl) |

“Shares”
[ B4 ]

“Scheme”

[t |

“Shareholder(s)”
[

“Stock Exchange”
[ 15 22 P |

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”

[ 3 2B

“VXLCPL”

[VXLCPL J

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee

B RELRGZHT

The Peoples’ Republic of China
G YNERE ]|

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
N R - v [ 0 B

The Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended

from time to time

FWEGIBE L3R G BRG] (RARERT)

Ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
AR ) e A v A B T 0.0 19 It 1A 35 78 I A

The share option scheme adopted by the Company at AGM held on 3 June 2005
AAF R ZFRRIAENH = H BT Z BRE A K L BR A i i e p

Holder(s) of Share(s) of the Company
NN N EER DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
GRS A R A

Has the meaning ascribed to in Schedule I to the SFO
Bl GBZR R BB B — Bl 3 i 0 28

VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands and a controlling Shareholder of the Company
RO 7 T J8 i 4 B IS 44 %5 VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited B 2 7] & 4S 23 7] [
2 JBe JBe 3R
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The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the

last five financial periods.

Financial Summary
S 25 i

A58 T 7 d5 A0 A B D 2 A S A
W e

1/1/2006 o 1/4/2007 0 1/4/2008 o 1/4/2009 o 1/4/2010 to
31/3/2007 31/3/2008 31/3/2009 31/3/2010 31/3/2011
1/1/2006% 1/412007% 1/4/2008% /4120098 1/4/2010%
31/3/2007 31/3/2008 31/3/2009 31/3/2010 31/3/2011
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T 70 T 0 SR
Turnover S 33,939 23,976 (10,105) 2,329 4,401
Profit/(loss) before taxation W Bi Rt R Al
(FEH) 52,337 34,449 (180,163) (154,278) (66,414)
Taxation (charge)/credit BIE (%)
e 11,207 (26,885) 29,087 3) 3)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERRF
(fE518) 63,544 7,564 (151,076) (154,281) (66,417)

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group as

AEEPR —RELE - ZRBNE - 2%

at 31 March 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011. W —-FFERFE——F=ZH=+—
HZ & E KA EEFEM R o
31/3/2007 31/3/2008 31/3/2009 31/3/2010 31/3/2011
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
T T T SR Tt
Total assets G A 994,971 1,480,957 521,741 589,758 631,503
Total liabilities A fEEH (695,570)  (1,124,381) (346,961) (444,285) (535,100)
Total equity HE 25 A8 A 299,401 356,576 174,780 145,473 96,403
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Shareholders’ Information

JBe 3 R

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2011 AGM will be held on Monday, 19 September 2011 at 11:30 a.m.
at Executive Boardroom in Business Centre, Level 7, Island Shangri-la,
Hong Kong, Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong.
Details of the 2011 AGM are set out in the Notice of 2011 AGM sent to the

Sharcholders together with a proxy form along with this Annual Report.

SHARE-RELATED SERVICES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company’s Share Registrars:—

Name: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Address: Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
Telephone: +852 2862 8628
Facsimile: +852 2529 6087
INVESTOR INFORMATION

Corporate press releases, financial reports and other investor information of
the Company are available online at the Company’s website, htep://www.

vxlcapital.com.

FINANCIAL CALENDER 2011

Announcement of 2010-11 final results 23 June 2011

2011 AGM 19 September 2011

Announcement of 2011-12 interim results November 2011

COMPANY’S MARKET CAPITALIZATION

HK$368.6 million as at year end, based on closing price of HK$0.241 per
Share on 31 March 2011.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Ki#i4: il A bR 2 7

Jie A3 A K &

N Y SR SN U T S S
AT IE (BH—) B4+ —m=14018
VB 7 s v B3 I K 0 v B A A L
KBENECHERE P OB #E R %
T ERACHAE R R 4
JBE A K I o 8 R ARR B AR
AL A A A B AR B

JB& 4y A B Al 25

A7 B By 8 5 % 8 ST o s I A A 2 T Y
JBe A7y 388 J5 R g ¢ —

LM HBPREHFELAMRAR

Wik FWEFREREAER BN T=5
GHRhL+EH—LE—ZFE A=

TEAG: +852 2862 8628

¥ : 4852 2529 6087

BREEER
2 BT R ~ B R A B A A A R
] A ) A 4k (htep://www.vxlcapital.com) 4

%o

—F M H
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah

(Chairman, Group President and Group Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. XIAO Huan Wei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.
Mr. David YU Hon To

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (Chairman)
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. David YU Hon To (Chairman)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.

REMUNERATION, QUALITY AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P. (Chairman)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.

Mr. David YU Hon To

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LIM Yi Ping

Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (Continued)

o EERE(B])

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 603A, 6th Floor
Empire Centre

No. 68 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Ordinary Shares (Stock Code: 727)

WEBSITES

VXL Capital Limited

htep://www.vxlcapital.com

U-Inn Hotels

http://www.uinns.cn
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V}(L CAPITAL LIMITED
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Room 603A, 6th Floor,

Empire Centre, No. 68 Mody Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEBNERDHER

2 3 8 6 8 5% 75 B /0

NFIHEGCO3AE

www.vxlcapital.com



	封面
	目錄
	主席報告
	年誌
	董事討論
	董事簡歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	詞彙
	財務摘要
	股東資料
	公司資料
	封底


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize false
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Preserve
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (\265L)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting true
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks true
      /AddPageInfo true
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        8.503940
        8.503940
        8.503940
        8.503940
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure true
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


